
 

 

Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol 
Lleoliad: 

O bell drwy Zoom 

Dyddiad: Dydd Iau, 27 Ionawr 2022 

Amser: 09.00

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Helen Finlayson 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddIechyd@senedd.cymru
------ 

Yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 34.19, mae’r Cadeirydd wedi penderfynu gwahardd 

y cyhoedd o gyfarfod y Pwyllgor er mwyn diogelu iechyd y cyhoedd. Bydd y 

cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei ddarlledu’n fyw ar www.senedd.tv 

Rhag–gyfarfod preifat (09.00-09.30)  

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau 

(09.30)   

2 Rhyddhau cleifion o ysbytai ac effaith hynny ar y llif cleifion drwy 

ysbytai: sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda chyrff y GIG 

(09.30-10.30) (Tudalennau 1 - 54)  

Nicky Hughes, Cyfarwyddwr Cyswllt ar gyfer Cysylltiadau Cyflogaeth – Coleg 

Nyrsio Brenhinol Cymru 

Dr Yvette Cloete, Cyfarwyddwr Clinigol a Phediatregydd Ymgynghorol - 

Ysbyty Athrofaol y Faenor, Coleg Brenhinol Pediatreg ac Iechyd Plant 

Dr Karl Davis, Is-gadeirydd - Cymdeithas Geriatreg Prydain 

 

 

Briff ymchwil 

 

Papur 1: Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol Cymru 

Papur 2: Coleg Brenhinol Pediatreg ac Iechyd Plant 

Papur 3: Cymdeithas Geriatreg Prydain 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



 

 

Egwyl (10.30-10.45)  

 

3 Rhyddhau cleifion o ysbytai ac effaith hynny ar y llif cleifion drwy 

ysbytai: sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda gweithwyr proffesiynol perthynol 

i iechyd 

(10.45-11.45) (Tudalennau 55 - 70)  

Dai Davies, Arweinydd Ymarfer Proffesiynol, Cymru – Coleg Brenhinol y 

Therapyddion Galwedigaethol 

Calum Higgins, Rheolwr Materion Cyhoeddus a Pholisi Cymru - Cymdeithas 

Siartredig Ffisiotherapi  

Pippa Cotterill, Pennaeth Swyddfa Cymru - Coleg Brenhinol y Therapyddion 

Iaith a Lleferydd 

 

Papur 4 - Coleg Brenhinol y Therapyddion Galwedigaethol 

Papur 5 - Cymdeithas Siartredig Ffisiotherapi 

Papur 6 - Coleg Brenhinol y Therapyddion Iaith a Lleferydd 

4 Papurau i’w nodi 

(11.45)   

4.1 Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deisebau at y Cadeirydd ynghylch P-05-

1078 Cynyddu cyllid ar gyfer gwasanaethau iechyd meddwl a gwella 

amseroedd aros i bobl sydd angen help mewn argyfwng. Mae angen newid! 

 (Tudalennau 71 - 72)  

4.2 Ymateb gan y Cadeirydd at Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deisebau ynghylch P-05-

1078 Cynyddu cyllid ar gyfer gwasanaethau iechyd meddwl a gwella 

amseroedd aros i bobl sydd angen help mewn argyfwng. Mae angen newid! 

 (Tudalennau 73 - 74)  

5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42(ix) i benderfynu gwahardd y 

cyhoedd o eitemau 6, 7, a 9 yn y cyfarfod heddiw 

(11.45)   



 

 

6 Cyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2022-23: trafod yr 

adroddiad drafft 

(11.45-12.05) (Tudalennau 75 - 106)  

Adroddiad drafft  

7 Adolygiad y Pwyllgor Busnes o amserlen a chylchoedd gorchwyl y 

pwyllgorau: ystyried y llythyr drafft 

(12.05-12.15) (Tudalennau 107 - 118)  

Papur 7 – llythyr drafft 

Cinio (12.15-13.00)  

 

8 Ymchwiliad i ryddhau cleifion o ysbytai ac effaith hynny ar y llif 

cleifion drwy ysbytai: sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda gweithwyr 

proffesiynol perthynol i iechyd 

(13.00-14.30) (Tudalennau 119 - 154)  

Gill Harris, Dirprwy Brif Weithredwr a Chyfarwyddwr Gweithredol Nyrsio a 

Bydwreigiaeth - Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr  

Dr Anthony Gibson, Cyfarwyddwr Grant Byw’n Annibynnol Pen-y-bont ar 

Ogwr - Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Cwm Taf Morgannwg 

Carol Shillabeer, Prif Weithredwr - Bwrdd Iechyd Addysgu Powys  

Jason Killens, Prif Weithredwr – Ymddiriedolaeth GIG Gwasanaethau 

Ambiwlans Cymru 

 

 

Papur 8 – Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr  

Papur 9 – Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Cwm Taf Morgannwg 

Papur 10 – Bwrdd Iechyd Addysgu Powys 

Papur 11- Ymddiriedolaeth GIG Gwasanaethau Ambiwlans Cymru 



 

 

9 Rhyddhau cleifion o ysbytai ac effaith hynny ar y llif cleifion drwy 

ysbytai: trafod y dystiolaeth a ddaeth i law 

(14.30-14.45)   



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



1 

Royal College of Nursing Wales response to the Health, and 
Social Care inquiry into the Hospital Discharge  its impact on 

patient flow through hospitals 

The Royal College of Nursing Wales is grateful for the opportunity to respond to this 

consultation. The Royal College of Nursing Wales has confirmed our availability to 

provide oral evidence to the Health and Social Care Committee on the 27 January 2022. 

The Royal College of Nursing Wales previously gave evidence on hospital discharge to 

the 5th Senedd’s Health, Social Care and Sports Committee1. Since the evidence was 

given to the 5th Senedd Committee the hospital discharge process has not improved.  

Summary 

• There is not enough capacity or resources in the community or care homes to

receive patients from hospital. This is a significant challenge to the health and

social care sector and a pivotal reason why there are delays in transfer.

• There is a lack of consistent communication across professions and between

health, social care and third sector organisation which adds to delays in hospital

discharge.

• Hospital discharge became evermore so complex during the COVID-19

pandemic and care home are still struggling.

• Discharge liaison nurses are pivotal to ensure a smooth and effective discharge

for an individual with complex needs.

• Clinical leadership plays an important part to ensure effective discharge occurs.

Recommendations 

1. The Welsh Government should extend Section 25B of the Nurse Staffing Levels

(Wales) Act 2016 to community nursing.

2. Health Education and Improvement Wales (HEIW) must develop a post-

registration commissioning strategy with a focus on district nurses and

community children nurses.

1 Royal College of Nursing, 2020, Hospital Discharge inquiry evidence. HDP03 - Royal College of Nursing.pdf 
(senedd.wales) 

HSC(6)-09-22 Papur 1 / Paper 1

Tudalen y pecyn 40

https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s115509/HDP03%20-%20Royal%20College%20of%20Nursing.pdf
https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s115509/HDP03%20-%20Royal%20College%20of%20Nursing.pdf


2 

3. NHS Wales should evaluate the ‘Red Bag’ scheme and assess how to improve

communication across primary, secondary, community and social care.

4. The Welsh Government and NHS Wales must support and actively promote the

role of the discharge liaison nurse.

Overview 

NHS performance statistics in Wales show in February 2020 there were 448 delayed 

transfers of care (DTOC) with the majority of patients waiting on community care (202) 

or the availability/selection of care homes (97).2 67% of patients experiencing a delayed 

transfer of care were aged 75 or older. At the beginning of the pandemic reporting on 

DTOC was suspended, this has not resumed. 

The acute hospital environment is not beneficial for people to remain in longer than 

clinically necessary. There is an increased risk of infection and a growth of mental 

dependency. Physical abilities decline rapidly which can result in an increased 

likelihood of falls and further injury and potential readmission to hospital.  

The “Get Up, Get Dressed, Get Moving” campaign acknowledged that patients aged over 

80 who remain in bed lose up to 10% of their muscle mass in just 10 days. The Campaign 

noted that up to 50% of patients can become incontinent within 24 hours of admission 

and fewer than 50% of patients recover to preadmission levels within 1 year3. 

The most significant factor causing delays in discharge is the lack of capacity in 

the community and care homes; there are not enough district nurses and care 

home nurses. 

From hospital to home 

Hospital to home refers to the care and support offered to patients that leave hospital 

for ongoing assessment and recovery with an aim of limiting unnecessary time in 

hospital settings.4 From the hospital’s front door to receiving care in the community, 

nurses are essential for delivering holistic care and ensuring a smooth patient journey. 

Hospital discharge is a multi-profession responsibility, but discharge liaison nurses are 

pivotal to ensuring a smooth transition for patients with complex needs.   

Discharge liaison nurses 

2 Stats Wales, 2020, Delays in Transfer of Care, https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Health-and-Social-
Care/NHS-Performance/Delayed-Transfers-of-Care/delayreason-by-localauthority  
3 Get up, get dressed, get moving, 2018, Cardiff and the Vale, http://www.cardiffandvaleuhb.wales.nhs.uk/get-

up-get-dressed-get-moving  
4 Welsh Government, 2021, Delivering Home First, Delivering Home First (gov.wales) 

Tudalen y pecyn 41

https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Health-and-Social-Care/NHS-Performance/Delayed-Transfers-of-Care/delayreason-by-localauthority
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Health-and-Social-Care/NHS-Performance/Delayed-Transfers-of-Care/delayreason-by-localauthority
http://www.cardiffandvaleuhb.wales.nhs.uk/get-up-get-dressed-get-moving
http://www.cardiffandvaleuhb.wales.nhs.uk/get-up-get-dressed-get-moving
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-08/hospital-to-home-community-of-practice-key-learning-and-practice-examples.pdf


3 
 

The Royal College of Nursing recommends supporting the role of the specialist 

discharge liaison nurse. This is a specialist nursing role that is pivotal to ensuring that 

the discharge of patients with complex needs is effective and efficient.  

Discharge liaison nurses: 

• ensure patients with complex care can leave hospital as soon as it is appropriate 

• provide expert advice and advocacy for the patient, relatives, carers and friends.  

• ensures the patient has a safe and appropriate plan of care for when they leave 

hospital.  

• provides a coordinating role and liaises between the patient, family members, 

inpatient staff, community nurses, GPs and social workers to ensure that all 

appropriate people are able to contribute to the ongoing plan of care. 

• ensure a hospital bed is made available in a timely and planned way for the next 

person who needs it and avoids delays in Accident and Emergency.  

• ensures the ward sister or charge nurse does not waste valuable time struggling to 

discharge a complex patient. 

• ensures frontline nursing teams have the additional knowledge and skills necessary 

to plan ongoing care for patients with complex needs.  

 

 

 

Community care 

Recovery from hospital-based treatment often requires clinical and social support. This 

package of care requires planning and of course the actual capacity to deliver it.  In 

addition, some of our most vulnerable older people are supported 365 days of the year 

by community nursing teams, delivering complex care and treatment packages at home. 

If this package of care is interrupted by a hospital admission, there is a delay in restarting 

this process. In addition without adequate support the risk of readmission becomes 

higher due to falls, poor nutrition and infection.   

For the last decade in Wales, health boards have reconfigured acute hospital services, 

reduced bed numbers, encouraged shorter patient stays, and enabled more complex 

treatments and care to be delivered at home. In A Healthier Wales (2018), the Welsh 

Government outlined its long-term vision: to shift health care provision from resource-

intensive hospitals to community-based services. This combined with the ageing 

population, and increased comorbidity of illnesses, means community nursing services 

have been under high pressure.  

Community nursing teams deliver care closer to home, promote independence and 

provide a holistic philosophy to care. Rather than focusing on a task-based approach 

RECOMMEDATION: The Welsh Government and NHS Wales must support and actively 

promote the role of the specialist discharge liaison nurse. 

 

 

 

  And  

Tudalen y pecyn 42



4 
 

(e.g. changing a dressing), community nursing care is about a range of activities that 

assess and respond to the whole spectrum of needs of people being cared for in their 

homes and communities. This fits perfectly with the aspirations of A Healthier Wales.  

Community nursing teams are led by district nurses. District nurses are the experienced 

pinnacle of a community nursing team, providing clinical supervision and leadership to 

the registered nurses and health care support workers. 

However, despite increasing the number of patients and complexity of care provided in 

the community the number of district nurses has actually declined over the last decade. 

10 years ago there were 749 FTE District Nurses working in the community. Today, 

there are only 635. Today’s data also needs to be taken with a pinch of salt as since 

2016 health boards have miscoded nurses working in the community as district nurses, 

this has possibly inflated the number.  

There is currently no strategy for post-registration nursing commissioning, including 

district nursing. As a result, the current commissioning figures for post-registration 

nursing education are not sufficient and will not facilitate the unique skills and 

knowledge needed to care for the population. This is having a devasting impact on 

hospital discharge.  

Extend Section 25B of the Nurse Staffing Levels (Wales) Act 2016.  

The Welsh Government should extend Section 25B of the Nurse Staffing Levels (Wales) 

Act 2016 to include community nursing services. Section 25B places a legal duty on 

health boards and trusts to calculate and maintain the level of nursing based on a 

specified methodology. The expansion of Section 25B to community nursing would 

support the discharge of patients in a timely manner into the community. It would further 

allow the patient to receive care in a more desirable environment and reduce hospital 

readmission.    

 

 

 

 

Child Community Care  

Traditionally children’s nurses were relatively few in number and hospital based. These 

days’ children with complex health needs can receive far more care at home. This means 

many more children’s nurses are needed in the community. Wound care & 

management, ventilation, BP monitoring, IV medication/line management, enteral 

feeding support and palliative care are some of the services children’s nurses provide, 

along with vital education for other healthcare professionals and for carers and school 

RECOMMENDATION: The Welsh Government should extend Section 25B of the Nurse 

Staffing Levels (Wales) Act 2016 to community nursing. This would support the discharge 

of patients to the community in a timely manner 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 43



5 
 

staff. Learning disability nurses are also in very short supply and are needed to support 

children and young people with challenging needs. 

Most children nowadays with complex needs receive care in the community as do those 

recovering from treatment or operations. Despite this, there are few nurses in the 

community to specifically care for children with complex conditions.  

The Royal College of Nursing Wales is pleased to see a rise in pre-registration children’s 

nursing places for 2021/2022 but urges the Welsh Government to further invest in 

community children nurses to ensure care is available for children in the community. 

The number of community children nurses failed to increase in 2020/2021 and, rather, 

decreased, falling from 48.7 to 43 (FTE). The Royal College of Nursing Wales is aware 

that there is a significant shortfall in the number of community children nurses needed 

to meet demand. Using the RCN’s recommendation for a minimum of 20 FTE community 

children nurses per average-sized district with a child population of 50,000, Together for 

Short Lives estimated that Wales needs an additional 240 community children nurses. 

 

 

 

Care homes 

There are only 1,438 registered nurses working for commissioned care providers 

in Wales5 

Effective rehabilitation and recovery takes time and extra care and assistance. This may 

be clinical e.g. wound dressing, pain management and monitoring infection. It may be 

assistance with daily living such as hygiene, toileting, and meal preparation.  The mantra 

of ‘people should be cared for at home’ must be balanced with an understanding of 

whether the home environment is suitable. A home environment may be unsuitable 

because physical limitations that cannot be altered e.g. stairs, or there may be family 

arrangements that also require rearrangement e.g. if the recovering person is usually a 

full-time carer.   

Following hospital treatment, it may be necessary for an individual to be placed into a 

care home as they are no longer able to live independently or their family can no longer 

provide the level of care the individual needs, this maybe a temporary or permanent 

placement in a care home.  

The financial burden on the elderly patient and their families may delay the transition 

from the hospital setting into a care home facility of choice and suitability. Furthermore, 

 
5 SCW_workforce_profile_2019_Commissioned-Services_final_EngV2.pdf (socialcare.wales) 

RECOMMENDATION: HEIW must develop a post-registration commissioning strategy 

with a focus on district nurses and community children nurses. 

Tudalen y pecyn 44

https://socialcare.wales/cms_assets/file-uploads/SCW_workforce_profile_2019_Commissioned-Services_final_EngV2.pdf


6 
 

identifying a bed in a care home is a lengthy process and is often followed by a complex 

funding process. 

• The time it takes have equipment provided e.g. temporary mobility aids 

• The time it takes to make necessary adjustments and structural change e.g. a ramp  

• The assessment for and availability of care packages to support home living e.g. 

nursing care  

• The time taken to identify arrange and fund a suitable placement in a care home, 

where specific needs can be met.  

In addition individuals with learning disabilities or a mental health diagnosis often 

experience a delay in discharge due to the lack of care providers available to provide the 

level of specialist care that the patient requires.  

The discharge of a patient into a care home is an extremely complex process.  

• The care home must assess the individual’s needs, ensure the home can meet 

the needs of the individual through physical and staffing resources 

• Discuss the choice with the person, family members and health professionals.  

• Discharge needs to occur on an appropriate day for the care home  

• If an individual needs to be transported to the home in an ambulance, that needs 

to be arranged , along with equipment.  

•  

Communication between primary, secondary, community and social care 

A significant barrier that contributes to delays in hospital discharge is a lack of 

consistent communication and joint working between health, social care and third 

sector bodies. Communication needs to be consistent and free-flowing throughout 

secondary, primary and social care.  

Initiatives have been introduced to improve communication and hospital discharge 

across Wales. As part of the Integrated Care Fund, the Welsh Government implemented 

a “red bag” scheme across West Glamorgan in 2019-2020. It sort to meet the National 

Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) Guidelines and helps care home 

residents admitted to hospital be discharged quicker. The bag contains key paperwork, 

medication, and personal items. This is handed to ambulance crews by care home staff 

when a patient need to be admitted to hospital. The bag travels with the patient from the 

care home to the hospital and back to the care home.  

However, the scheme was only very recently introduced in West Glamorgan, and the 

COVID-19 pandemic disrupted any progress that could have been made.  

 

 

RECOMMEDATION: NHS Wales should evaluate the ‘Red Bag’ scheme and assess how to 

improve communication across primary, secondary, community and social care. 

 

 
Tudalen y pecyn 45



7 
 

 

The experiences of patients, families, carers and staff of discharge 

processes. 

The importance of patient’s experience has been recognised within the nursing 

profession and local health boards. ‘Patient stories’ are often collected by nurses and 

used to illustrate an experience and reflect upon. The patient’s story is shared with a 

group of nursing professionals with the aim to improve practices. Health board similarly 

gather patient stories and reflect upon them at their Board meeting, this is also done to 

improve practise. 

The examples below are drawn from our members experience and illustrate some of the 

common concerns that we have explained elsewhere in the paper.  

 

Example A – inappropriate early discharge  

A patient who had been admitted to hospital for surgery was due to be discharged 

on a Saturday. She was instead discharged late on Friday and a surgical drain had 

been removed even though it was still draining. The wound leaked overnight, and 

the bedding had to be changed 3 times. By Monday she was sent back to hospital 

by her GP. Following her experience, she developed abdominal collection, wound 

infection and sepsis. The patient expressed that she waited hours for another bed 

to be available and was admitted for a further three weeks. 

 

Example B – a delayed discharge  

A patient who has undergone knee surgery was judged medically fit to be 

discharged on Wednesday. A physiotherapist was needed to assess mobility. The 

physiotherapist was able to see the patient on Friday. Some mobility aids were 

required for the home. Only an occupational therapist could issue these. The 

occupational therapist was able to see the patient on Monday and issue this 

equipment. An ambulance was booked to take the patient home on the Tuesday 

at 12noon. The patient was asked to leave the bed and sit in the discharge lounge 

at 9am so the bed could be free for another patient.  A suitable wheelchair was 

found only at 11am. However, at this point there was no chair free in the 

discharge lounge so the patient remained in the bed. When the ambulance 

transfer team arrived at 12noon the patient’s medication was not ready. The 

pharmacy advised the patient stay an extra night as the medication would be 

ready the next day. The ambulance transfer would need to be re-booked and the 

next available slot was Thursday. Thus, the total number of days delayed in 

hospital since the patient was ready for discharge was 7 days.  

Tudalen y pecyn 46



8 
 

 

Example C- A mental health nurse discharge experience  

Two individual patients, one had a learning disability and the other a mental 

health diagnosis, were awaiting a discharge from an assessment and treatment 

unit (AATU). Care providers had been agreed and went through the transition 

process and at times commenced their own care staff to begin shadow shifts with 

these individuals. The care providers then decided they could not meet the needs 

for these individuals The mental health nurse expressed that they find it extremely 

hard to deal with the failure to discharge as it leaves the most vulnerable patients 

back to square one in an AATU despite being ready for discharge and these 

instances have an impact on the patient’s mental state which can cause a 

relapse.   

 

Related RCN Wales publications 

• 1 Royal College of Nursing, 2020, Hospital Discharge inquiry evidence. HDP03 - Royal 

College of Nursing.pdf (senedd.wales) 

 

• Royal College of Nursing Wales, 2021, Paper 1: Community Nursing Teams The Role of 

the District Nurse and the Community Children Nurse.  https://www.rcn.org.uk/-

/media/royal-college-of-nursing/documents/countries-and-

regions/wales/2021/community-nursing-2021-

english.pdf?la=en&hash=EC640EE9C2CAD03099C5933404613C68 

 

• Royal College of Nursing Wales, 2021, Nursing in Care homes, https://www.rcn.org.uk/-

/media/royal-college-of-nursing/documents/countries-and-regions/wales/2021/care-

home-report.pdf?la=en&hash=C10E0200C2037FC64DDF34A3017ED78B 

 

 

 

 

About the Royal College of Nursing (RCN) 

The RCN is the world’s largest professional organisation and trade union of nurses, representing 

around 435,000 nurses, midwives, health visitors, healthcare support workers and nursing 

students, including over 27,000 members in Wales. RCN members work in both the independent 

sector and the NHS. Around two-thirds of our members are based in the community.  The RCN is 

a UK-wide organisation, with its own National Boards for Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland.   

The RCN represents nurses and nursing, promotes excellence in nursing practice and shapes 

health and social care policy.        

Tudalen y pecyn 47

https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s115509/HDP03%20-%20Royal%20College%20of%20Nursing.pdf
https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s115509/HDP03%20-%20Royal%20College%20of%20Nursing.pdf
https://www.rcn.org.uk/-/media/royal-college-of-nursing/documents/countries-and-regions/wales/2021/community-nursing-2021-english.pdf?la=en&hash=EC640EE9C2CAD03099C5933404613C68
https://www.rcn.org.uk/-/media/royal-college-of-nursing/documents/countries-and-regions/wales/2021/community-nursing-2021-english.pdf?la=en&hash=EC640EE9C2CAD03099C5933404613C68
https://www.rcn.org.uk/-/media/royal-college-of-nursing/documents/countries-and-regions/wales/2021/community-nursing-2021-english.pdf?la=en&hash=EC640EE9C2CAD03099C5933404613C68
https://www.rcn.org.uk/-/media/royal-college-of-nursing/documents/countries-and-regions/wales/2021/community-nursing-2021-english.pdf?la=en&hash=EC640EE9C2CAD03099C5933404613C68
https://www.rcn.org.uk/-/media/royal-college-of-nursing/documents/countries-and-regions/wales/2021/care-home-report.pdf?la=en&hash=C10E0200C2037FC64DDF34A3017ED78B
https://www.rcn.org.uk/-/media/royal-college-of-nursing/documents/countries-and-regions/wales/2021/care-home-report.pdf?la=en&hash=C10E0200C2037FC64DDF34A3017ED78B
https://www.rcn.org.uk/-/media/royal-college-of-nursing/documents/countries-and-regions/wales/2021/care-home-report.pdf?la=en&hash=C10E0200C2037FC64DDF34A3017ED78B


Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health (RCPCH) response to 

Health and Social Care Committee consultation:  

Hospital discharge and its impact on patient flow through hospitals 

About the RCPCH 

The RCPCH works to transform child health through knowledge, innovation and expertise. We have 

over 500 members in Wales, 14,000 across the UK and over 17,000 worldwide. The RCPCH is 

responsible for training and examining paediatricians. We also advocate on behalf of members, 

represent their views and draw upon their expertise to inform policy development and the 

maintenance of professional standards.  

Paediatric perspectives on hospital discharge and its impact on patient flow through 

hospitals 

The scale of the current situation with delayed transfers of care from hospital. 

Data would likely be held by Health Boards rather than by us as a Royal College, so for an accurate 

assessment of the scale across different parts of Wales, we would suggest requesting these data 

from Health Boards. However, we can provide a paediatric perspective based on members’ clinical 

experience.  

There are different experiences in various settings; for example between District General Hospitals 

(DGH) and the larger tertiary units. In DGHs there would typically be a fast turnover of patients and 

long waits for discharge are less common, although they do happen occasionally. This is often also 

the case in the larger tertiary units, however in these settings there is a greater volume of more 

complex cases where social care packages are often needed to enable discharge, which can lead to 

issues waiting for these. Member feedback suggests that in Cardiff, there would typically be around 

two ‘longstay’ inpatients most weeks in this situation.  

The impact of delays in hospital discharge, both on the individual and the patient flow through 

hospitals and service pressures. 

The delays in adults being discharged impacts on Paediatrics in that it can result in losing beds: this is 

something members have experienced.  

Paediatricians see delays in CAMHS referrals from all types of paediatric units, which can have a 

significant impact both on services (if patients who are physically well are unable to leave paediatric 

units because there isn’t a CAMHS place immediately available) and of course on the patient 

themselves who may be away from friends and family, or missing education or other types of 

support. In addition, a paediatric unit may not be an ideal location for young people in this situation, 

particularly if not set up for adolescents / teenagers.  

HSC(6)-09-22 Papur 2 / Paper 2

Tudalen y pecyn 48

mailto:gethin.matthews-jones@rcpch.ac.uk


 

When there are safeguarding concerns or CAMHS referrals, there is often a need for high staffing 

ratios. Close observation and additional support may be required, but this can be done in 

community or specialist settings. Hospital environments may not be ideal or appropriate. 

 

The variations in hospital discharge practices throughout Wales and cross-border, and how they 

are meeting the care and support needs of individuals. 

 

CCTH (Care Closer to Home) gets patients out quickly - these are community nurses that deliver 

intravenous antibiotics at home. However, this system is not in place in each Health Board. For 

example, members report that it is available and working well in Aneurin Bevan, but not available in 

Cardiff and Vale. There is therefore geographical inequity across Wales.   

 

The main pressure points and barriers to discharging hospital patients with care and support 

needs, including social care services capacity. 

 

In many settings, paediatricians don’t encounter the same barriers to discharge that adult colleagues 

often do in terms of care and support needs and in particular around housing and accommodation. 

However, in some settings, patients often need foster homes ahead of discharge, as well as health 

packages. There are added complications when there are social services and safeguarding needs. 

These may involve children who have experienced abuse, or who have complex needs and require 

specialist foster placements. In Cardiff, feedback from one of our members suggests that waiting for 

temporary foster carer placement is not an uncommon experience but is usually resolved within 

days rather than weeks.  

 

CAMHS remains the biggest issue. Sometimes parents can’t cope or need specialist placements. 

Paediatricians consistently report a significant increase in children and young people presenting as a 

result of mental health issues and perceive a substantial increase in referrals to specialist services 

over the past two years. Some of these children spend longer in hospital than is required. This can 

mean that children are medically fit for discharge but wait several weeks for a CAMHS placement. 

 

There are other considerations in paediatrics: 

 

• Once patient are discharged there can be delays whilst waiting for pharmacy medications; 

however this is usually hours rather than days. 

• There can also be delays if family don’t have transport, again hours rather than days. 

• Occasionally there are delays if patients need to wait for an inpatient investigation or 

assessment, but this is not common. 

• Chronic pain can cause delays if there are no adequate services to refer in to. An RCPCH 

member in Cardiff reported that it is not uncommon to have patients on the ward for over a 

month waiting for placements in Bath pain service.  

• If a child is admitted for safeguarding investigation on a Friday, they may wait all weekend 

rather than the usual 24-48hrs required. This is partly due to problems in accessing radiology 

specialist investigations but also that no strategy meetings are held at weekends. This results 

in extended admission periods. 

 

 

The support, help and advice that is in place for family and unpaid carers during the process. 

Tudalen y pecyn 49



 

In Cardiff and Value there is a discharge liaison service that provides support for families. 

Paediatricians have not reported concerns to us about support in hospital. There are third sector 

organisations offering support too. This is not universally replicated across Wales to the same 

extent. 

 

What has worked in Wales, and other parts of the UK, in supporting hospital discharge and 

improved patient flow, and identifying the common features. 

 

Paediatricians undertake regular reviews and discharge as soon as the child is well enough. Frequent 

ward rounds and close liaison with the NIC (Nurse in Charge) / PFCO (Patient Flow Co-ordinator) and 

others help. We have previously mentioned the CCTH (Care Closer to Home) programme which has 

been successful but isn’t available throughout Wales; and the role of the Patient Flow Coordinators.  

 

Members we have spoken to have identified a number of pieces of good practice which help, 

including: 

 

• Clear plans documented with every patient contact from admission to ward rounds and 

reviews. 

• Clear expectations discussed with family around criteria for discharge with realistic 

timescales so they can plan appropriately. 

• Discussing transport with patients. 

• Regular reviews with a view to discharge. 

• Active management plans with clear instructions on criteria for review or discharge. 

• Ward Week consultants (Consultant of the Week). 

 

What is needed to enable people to return home at the right time, with the right care and support 

in place, including access to reablement services and consideration of housing needs. 

 

As highlighted above, the key changes need from a paediatric perspective are around delivering care 

and services closer to home in the community. These include foster services, CAMHS and pain 

management services as referenced previously. Delivering these services will require proper 

resourcing and developing the necessary workforce.  

 

In addition to reducing waiting time for discharge, delivering effective community-based services 

could prevent hospital admissions in the first instance. This is acknowledged in – and is the direction 

of travel set out in - A Healthier Wales, the Welsh Government’s long term plan for health and social 

care. We welcomed this plan when it was published, particularly in terms of its focus on delivering 

care in community settings close to people’s homes; and on intervening early to prevent hospital 

admissions in the first place. We believe the focus should be on delivering these commitments by 

improving child health through early intervention and prevention; and resourcing services to deliver 

services in the right settings.  

Tudalen y pecyn 50

https://gov.wales/healthier-wales-long-term-plan-health-and-social-care
https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/news-events/news/rcpch-responds-welsh-governments-healthier-wales-our-plan-health-social-care


Russell George MS 
Chair, Health and Social Care Committee 
Senedd Cymru 
Cardiff Bay  
Cardiff  
CF99 1SN 

15 December 2021 

Dear Mr George, 

Hospital discharge and its impact on patient flow through hospitals – 
Submission from the British Geriatrics Society 

The British Geriatrics Society (BGS) welcomes the opportunity to contribute to the Health 
and Social Care Committee’s inquiry into hospital discharge and its impact on patient 
flow through hospitals. The BGS is the membership organisation for all healthcare 
professionals engaged in the treatment and care of older people across the UK. Since 
1947 our members have been at the forefront of transforming the quality of care 
available to older people. Our vision is for a society where all older people receive high-
quality patient-centred care when and where they need it. We currently have over 4,500 
members across the UK, including more than 200 in Wales. 

Delayed discharge and the impact on older people 

Most older people do not want to be in hospital and if they do need to be admitted to 
hospital, they want to be there for the shortest possible stay. However, this is not always 
the case, especially if there are new care requirements that need to be arranged to 
support discharge and onward care. We know that lengthy hospital stays are bad for 
older people as it puts them at risk of hospital acquired infections (including hospital 
acquired COVID-19) and deconditioning.   

The BGS Wales appreciate the guidance published by the Welsh Government Delivering 
Home First Hospital to Home Community of Practice which has encouraged Health 
Boards to invest in care closer to home but there is still more to be done. 

We know that there is a significant problem regarding the availability of social care in the 
community and this has an impact on hospital discharge and the length of time that 
people stay in hospital. This cannot be ignored – recruitment and retention of social care 
staff must be a priority to ensure that older people are able to access the care they need 
upon discharge.  

It is however important to note that the entire patient pathway through hospital can 
impact discharge procedures and it is essential that planning for discharge begins at the 
earliest possible stage. Delays at the beginning of a hospital stay can have a direct 
impact on length of stay in hospital and the level of care someone requires when they 
leave. This can include a delay in getting to hospital in the first place or a delay in finding 

HSC(6)-09-22 Papur 3 / Paper 3

Tudalen y pecyn 51



a bed for a patient once they get to hospital which then causes a delay in accessing 
specialist care in hospital. It is therefore important to ensure that delays are minimised 
throughout a patient’s hospital stay in order to enable to smooth discharge process. 

Understanding hospital length of stay in Wales 

We are using the example of hip fracture to demonstrate the impact of length of stay on 
older people across Wales. Hip fracture provides an effective metric with which to 
examine older people’s experience as they pass through the complexities of the health 
and social care system. The diagnosis is very clear to define, and each hospital admits 
one or two patients each day, a quarter of whom are from care homes. These patients 
need collaborative care by a range of specialties and their rehabilitation and discharge 
depends on close cooperation within the hospital multi-disciplinary team and the 
between hospital and community services. While the relative ease of hip fracture 
diagnosis compared to patients with more complex conditions means that this is not 
directly applicable to all circumstances, we hope to demonstrate that by optimising 
hospital processes, length of stay can be reduced and discharge can be smoother. 

Length of stay in Wales for hip fracture averages one month and with over 4,000 
admissions a year, this means that at any one time this single condition leads to the 
occupation of 340 beds across Wales. Hip fracture provides a good example of the 
challenges facing older patients with frailty and the lessons from this condition can be 
applied to other conditions that older people present with when they attend hospital. 

Variation across Wales 

There is considerable variation in how long the same people stay as inpatients, 
depending on which Health Board is providing their care. Prior to the COVID-19 
pandemic, this ranged from 27 to 34 days for people with hip fracture. The shortest 
length of stay was consistently achieved in Bronglais Hospital in Aberystwyth which has 
repeatedly been highlighted for the quality of its performance and outcome (including 
low mortality) in the National Clinical Audit of Hip Fracture.1 This reflects the efficient 
and effective functioning of the local multidisciplinary team throughout the clinical 
pathway with reduced length of stay being just one consequence of properly coordinated 
multidisciplinary care. 

A natural experiment with length of stay in Wales 

Since the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, variation in length of stay has increased 
across Wales, and now ranges from 24 to over 40 days. The experience varies across 
health boards and some hospitals have reported significant improvements in length of 
stay while others have experienced increased problems. 

At the onset of the pandemic, Cardiff and the Vale Health Board decided to improve 
capacity for COVID-19 activity by managing hip fracture patients more actively. It is 
important to note that there was not a decline in the number of people experiencing hip 
fracture during the pandemic. In Cardiff and Vale, geriatrician-led wards became the 
focus for intensive seven-day working by orthopaedic surgeons, nurses and therapists 
whose elective work had paused. As a result of efficient and effective joint working many 
more patients were able to mobilise promptly after surgery, unprecedented numbers of 
patients went home within a week and overall hip fracture length of stay fell by a week. 

1 https://www.nhfd.co.uk/ 

Tudalen y pecyn 52



In contrast other hospitals where a similar approach has not been taken and 
geriatricians have been diverted to other parts of the hospital to care for COVID-19 
patients, length of stay either lengthened or remained static during the pandemic. For 
example, Maelor Hospital in Wrexham took a different approach during the pandemic 
and experienced increased length of stay for their patients. It is also worth noting that 
the approach taken in Cardiff and Vale has not been sustained now that elective work 
has restarted. In order for this impact to be seen on a sustained basis, more permanent 
changes will need to be made to the organisation and staffing in hospitals. 

Reducing length of hospital stay in Wales 

Discussions about length of stay tend to usually turn to delayed discharge, with many 
pointing to lack of capacity in social care as the cause of delayed discharge. It is 
important to note that this is the case for many people who have additional care needs 
at the end of their hospital stay. Current lack of capacity in the social care system means 
that there are often delays in arranging either care home placements or homecare 
packages for these people and this can result in them being stuck in hospital for longer 
than they medically need to be there. Lack of capacity in the homecare system can also 
mean that older people are not able to access the care they need in the community and 
are then admitted to hospital, often staying for longer than necessary while waiting for 
homecare to be arranged. Increased capacity in the community would help to avoid 
unnecessary hospital admissions. 

However, by using the example of hip fracture services, we hope we have demonstrated 
that investment in efficient and effective multi-disciplinary working within the hospital  

Tudalen y pecyn 53



setting can also have an impact on length of stay and can reduce the need for additional 
care after hospital discharge. 

We look forward to discussing these issues with you further when we give oral evidence 
to the Committee. 

Yours sincerely, 

Prof Sam Abraham 
Chair, BGS Wales 

Tudalen y pecyn 54



                                                                                  
 
HSC(6)-09-22 Papur 4 / Paper 4 
 

Written evidence to inform the Committee’s inquiry on hospital discharge 
and its impact on patient flow through hospitals 
 

 
The Royal College of Occupational Therapists (RCOT) is the professional body for occupational therapy 

representing over 33,500 occupational therapists across the UK.  Occupational therapists in Wales and 

work in the NHS, Local Authority social care services, housing, schools, prisons, care homes, voluntary 

and independent sectors, and vocational and employment rehabilitation services.  

 

Occupational therapists work with people of all ages, who are experiencing difficulties through injury, 

illness or disability or a major life change. Occupational therapists consider the relationship between 

what a person does every day (occupations), how illness or disability impacts upon the person and 

how a person’s environment supports or hinders their activity (PEO Model). Using this approach, we 

help people to continue or re-engage with participating fully in daily life, including work, social activities 

and maintaining roles and responsibilities.  

 

Please find below comments from RCOT. 

 
Submission 
The scale of the current situation with delayed transfers of care from hospital?  

RCOT have spoken to our members throughout Wales, and we have been informed that generally all our 

hospital based occupational therapists have delayed transferred of care patients on their caseloads and 

in one local health board they reported every patient that is deemed in need of a package of care is 

delayed. 

The impact of delays in hospital discharge, both on the individual and the patient flow through 
hospitals and service pressures? 
 
Our members report that some patients are discharged without – not always to family/informal care and 

run risk of their not coping/readmission.  Some individuals have reported frustration/low mood from not 

being able to go home in a timely manner, even displaying challenging behaviour.  The length of stay is 

psychologically hard for some patients as they cannot see family members very often.  Wards do not run 

activities and so they are denied social interaction.  For some patient groups this has a marked effect on 

their ability to rehabilitate and engage with staff.  For our therapists this can be sole destroying as they 

are maintaining patients that have reached their full potential and should have left the ward, and are they 

are not providing rehab to new patients waiting to come in. 

Members report other patients have become resigned to delays or are pleased that they are staying in 

hospital/being cared for by staff, but these behaviours risk increased dependency which then requires 

more support on discharge.  Several of our members report that some patients are reluctant to be 

discharged and then assessed by social care agencies because of lack of trust.  Specifically, that they 

will not be offered support. 

Flow has been impeded, beds are full at all levels of acute and community hospital services.  

More wards have opened for winter pressures and COVID leading to strain on existing staff resources, 

and no increase in occupational therapy staff/posts to cover.  Our managers’ report frustrations that they 
Tudalen y pecyn 55

Eitem 3

https://www.rcot.co.uk/


                                                                                  
 

 
Royal College of Occupational Therapists 
106-114 Borough High Street, Southwark, London SE1 1LB 
www.rcot.org.uk  Page 2 

are being asked to move staff away from services that stop admission and keep people at home to focus 

on hospital discharge.  One manager explained that it’s just like an added extra tap to a bath that is 

already overflowing.  

The variations in hospital discharge practices throughout Wales and cross-border, and how they 

are meeting the care and support needs of individuals? 

Most areas of Wales have different types of stay at home/return home/ home first services.  Discharge 

from hospital services is based on Discharge to Assess to Recover principles.  Primarily these services 

have been set up to enable provision of social and medical care at home rather than transferring to 

hospital but also to offer timely discharge to patients needing hospital care. 

The D2AR model is already well-established in some areas and has significant implications for service 

delivery and has impacted upon the working arrangements for occupational therapists and other health 

professionals in both acute, community and local authority settings.  The Discharge to Recover then 

Assess model can only be achieved through close partnership working.  Our members report quite 

significant variation throughout Wales in how Occupational therapists and our AHP colleagues are used 

in each of the 4 D2RA pathways.  For example, in CTMLHB (Stay well at Home) and in North Wales 

(home first) occupational therapists and other AHPs are situated in A & E departments.  In 2019/20 the 

Stay Well at home service stopped 2,153 admissions of patients between the ages of 61-74 in 2018/19 

only 183 avoided admissions.  Although our members support local decision making it is frustrating 

where models of good practice are not replicated throughout Wales. 

Several members are unfortunately reporting that they feel that because of the obvious pressures on the 

system, normal procedures are not being followed.  Some district general hospitals are discharging into 

the community without the appropriate support at times, due to their own pressure.  However, this does 

mean the community teams have to pick up the concerns when people get home and feel they cannot 

cope.  Certain hospitals have a worse reputation than others for this practice. 

The main pressure points and barriers to discharging hospital patients with care and support 

needs, including social care services capacity? 

Our member report time contrasts in being involved with assessment of individual’s needs and 

capabilities regarding personal and simple domestic tasks.  Our occupational therapists are in a good 

place to highlight concerns as to an individual’s ability to cope without care and support.  Although 

occupational therapists are completing assessments and making recommendations, but at times their 

voice is not always heard, and care is being sought in addition anyway in some cases.  Our Social Care 

occupational therapists are reporting at times of an over prescription of services and equipment because 

assessments are rushed and are inclined to over prescribe to managed perceived risks. For example, 

one lady who one of our members seen, was told she needed a package of care of four calls a day to go 

home by the nursing team.  She would be waiting four weeks in hospital for that, and she was main carer 

for her husband with dementia at home.  She did need some help but with detailed conversations with 

her and her son, he agreed to move up from London to support her to come home until care could be put 

in place.  She got home two days later and could be with her family where she wanted to be.  Without an 

occupational therapy assessment to unpick what home meant to her and what was most important, and 

who could step in to provide that support, she would still be waiting for a package of care in hospital. 

Tudalen y pecyn 56

http://www.rcot.org.uk/


                                                                                  
 

 
Royal College of Occupational Therapists 
106-114 Borough High Street, Southwark, London SE1 1LB 
www.rcot.org.uk  Page 3 

Pressure points are at the front door and back door (delays due to packages of care/support on 

discharge).  When hospitals have a concerted effort to improve flow by focussing staffing in specific 

areas (extras working on weekends that may generally work 5 days per week) then pressure shifts.  As 

previously mentioned, systems already in place to deal with this are struggling with re-deployment and 

lack of resources. 

We have significant recruitment issues employing occupational therapists in our local authorities.  Social 

Care occupational therapy waiting lists are substantial in most areas.  Councils are losing occupational 

therapists to the NHS because of better wages and conditions. 

Some people arrive in hospital much worse off due to lack of activity and lack of access to community 

services/GPs since the onset of COVID 19.  They haven’t sought help soon enough for preventative 

measures. Occupational therapists are seeing people with greater complexity of needs requiring higher 

intensity of intervention. 

All areas of Wales report pressures on equipment services due to difficulties with supplies.  If provision is 

needed for discharge this can also cause delays at present.  There are major delays with moving and 

handling and assisted equipment. 

The support, help and advice that is in place for family and unpaid carers during the process? 

Our members feel at times there is too much pressure on family to provide support to help with 

discharge and this can be short lived/not sustainable.  Some family members are not feeling prepared for 

a greater caring role.  Some may have agreed to fill the gap in the past but now fear being let down and 

left to cope so decline in first place.  Some patients fear being removed from waiting lists for a formal 

care package or moved down the list of priority even when family only agreed to do this as a temporary 

measure. 

What has worked in Wales, and other parts of the UK, in supporting hospital discharge and 
improved patient flow, and identifying the common features? 
 
The stay well at home service in CTMLHB and other services such as home first in Monmouthshire are 
excellent examples of practice that are keeping people away from hospital or discharge home quickly.  It 
is hugely frustrating to our members that theses service are fragmented and generally funded on a short-
term basis.  
 
Common features  
 

 Occupational therapists and other AHP’s are positioned at the front door of services.  AHP’s can 
help avoid admission in the first instance if located in A&E, GP surgeries and with our paramedic 
colleagues 

 Occupational therapists are key leaders in the service and are crucial to the successful delivery 
of D2AR pathways as they are experts in rehabilitation and reablement and already operate 
within acute, community, social care, housing and voluntary sector settings 

 When Careful consideration is given locally to the capacity of the occupational therapy workforce 
to deliver the D2AR model, including mapping of existing acute, community and social care 
therapy services to identify staffing and skills mix, including gaps and pressures 

 Our social care occupational therapist is part of the review of care packages - this can ensure the 
best ongoing level of support and can release cover for new service users.  Our single-handed 
care programmes in large parts of Wales have reduced care and freed equipment for others 

Tudalen y pecyn 57

http://www.rcot.org.uk/


                                                                                  
 

 
Royal College of Occupational Therapists 
106-114 Borough High Street, Southwark, London SE1 1LB 
www.rcot.org.uk  Page 4 

 Effective communication across teams and settings is essential to ensure that handovers take 
place effectively, that staff capacity can meet demand, and that all respective areas of 
responsibility are understood 
 

 
What is needed to enable people to return home at the right time, with the right care and support 

in place, including access to Reablement services and consideration of housing needs? 

 Increased Occupational Therapy/Social care services across the board 

 Increase in formal carer services available to provide care packages for Reablement and long-
term need 

 Better access to GP services and increased capacity including occupational therapists working in 
GP practices 

 Improvements to access to supportive equipment/advice including a better system for out of area 
requests (currently coming to hospital occupational therapy duty for administration) 

 Therapists, nurses, and medics in acute settings can sometimes feel concerned about perceived 
risks of patients being discharged sooner.  The RCOT document Embracing risk; enabling choice 
(RCOT, 2017) can support conversations and decisions that focus on positive risk taking. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 58

http://www.rcot.org.uk/
https://www.rcot.co.uk/practice-resources/rcot-publications/downloads/embracing-risk


HSC(6)-09-22 Papur 5 / Paper 5 

1 
 

 
 

CSP Wales Office 
1 Cathedral Road 
Cardiff CF11 9SD 
029 2038 2429 
www.csp.org.uk 

 
Date 12/01/22 
 
Dear Colleague 
 
Re:  Health and Social Care committee, written Evidence for patient discharge inquiry 
 

Introduction 

 
The CSP welcomes this opportunity to respond in writing to Health and Social Care committee 

request for our views patient discharge.  

Our written briefing compliments the principles in ‘A Healthier Wales’ and, the stated aim of the 

Welsh Government, to “whole system approach to health and social care, which is focussed on 

health and wellbeing, and on preventing illness.”   

Thank you for providing us with an opportunity to highlight the current state of play in patient 

discharge services, while offering comment on specific areas which we see the physiotherapy and 

the profession making a positive contribution to better patient outcomes.  

 

Comments from the CSP 

 

Discharge and waiting time link 
 
Waiting times and discharge times are interlinked, and physiotherapy waiting times relate strongly 
to discharge from other services such as orthopaedics.  When a patient is discharged from 
hospital, physiotherapy is key in meeting the rehab needs of the patient, ensuring effective 
outcomes and reduction in relapses of the condition they were treated for.  Rehab is key for 
effective discharge and every patient in wales should receive a consistent service.  The priority in 
recent years is to deliver as much of this at home and in the community as possible.   
 
Physiotherapy waiting times are linked to the number of patients being discharged from hospitals. 
The increase in physiotherapy waiting times reflects the increase in patients being discharged as 
they move through the treatment pathways.   
 

Tudalen y pecyn 59

http://www.csp.org.uk/


 
 

We hear from our members that the workforce issues in social care has an impact on discharge 
and the length of stay of patients in hospital.   
 
Right to Rehab 
The Right to Rehab is about creating the expectation that patients and citizens in Wales should 
have rehabilitation services as a matter of course. It’s about the delivery of rehabilitation services 
to everyone that needs it. It complements the Healthier Wales strategy and does not require 
legislation, just a commitment to delivery of rehab services. 
Rehabilitation helps people do more than just survive their condition – it helps them really live. It 
is vital to people living with long-term physical or mental conditions or recovering after an 
accident, operation or illness, in order they can live as well - and as independently - as possible. 
In most cases people’s rehabilitation will require a period of intervention by health and social care 
professionals. It will also often extend beyond that treatment and into long-term support within 
communities. At that point rehabilitation can take many forms, and is determined by people’s 
needs and their goals. 
 
Currently these needs are not being fully met: while there are excellent examples of rehabilitation, 
it is not consistently available. Services are not joined up between acute, residential and home 
settings, so people can easily be lost to the system. Where people can access services, they often 
have to wait too long, usually at just the time when rehabilitation would be most effective. 
Without the rehabilitation they need, people are at risk of readmission to hospital, likely to need 
repeat visits to GPs, need additional care from their family or providers, and may struggle to 
return to work or live their lives to the full. 
 
Multi-disciplinary working (MDT) 
Effective discharge usually delivered by multi-disciplinary teams.  The CSP can provide examples of 
good multi-disciplinary working that has been accelerated during the pandemic.  As ever, the issue 
is cross Wales learning and consistency of delivery.   
 
Patients can be broadly categorised into 4 main groups, and require different levels of rehab on 
discharge.    
 
1) Acute Covid patients who need considerable rehab due to the virus, including long Covid.  
2) People who have not received treatment during the lockdown but will enter the health 
system when it’s safe, currently self-managing their conditions. 
3) Patients who are entered the health care system late, having missed early diagnosis or 
waited longer for treatment. 
4) People who have deconditioned during isolation. 
 
All these groups of patients have become more complex, both medically and socially.  There is less 
support available in the community and therefore the burden on the health and social care 
services has increased.   
 
Our members tell us that many more patients are accessing self-managing resources. The increase 
can be seen in patients who are digitally aware and with high engagement with their health 
services. However, his type of resource cannot cover all patients, particularly those with no digital 
skills or in digital poverty.  
 
Physiotherapy capacity  
In short, Physiotherapy services are stretched at capacity, even after adapting services to increase 
the number of patients self-managing and getting advice virtually. Our main concern is that 

Tudalen y pecyn 60



 
 

physiotherapy services are at capacity, before everything has come back to full throughout the 
healthcare system. 
 
Examples of good adaptation are the increased use of self-management resources available, 
including dedicated websites such as “keeping me well” in Cardiff and the Vale Health Board: 
https://keepingmewell.com/what-is-physiotherapy/what-is-musculoskeletal-out-patient-
physiotherapy/ . As mentioned above, these resources assist a great many people, but cannot be a 
catch all.  
 
Loss of space and moving to virtual 
Loss of space in hospitals is effecting ability of physiotherapists to see patients face to face. Rehab 
spaces in hospitals were commandeered during the pandemic, sometimes for non-clinical use, and 
it’s proving to be difficult to get them back for clinical use.  
While we support the move to community service delivery, there is still a need for space for 
patients to rehab before discharge.  For example, space to rehab a stroke patient before discharge 
is vital to get them in a safe condition to be discharged. Where dedicated space is no longer 
available the rehab is being delivered at the bedside.  
 
Examples of space lost include: 

 Hydrotherapy pools still closed 

 Gyms taken for PPE storage 

 Ward rehab space 

 Staff wellbeing areas not returned 
 
On discharge patients should be able to pick from a menu of services, including face to face or 
community activities.  While we support the increase in virtual provision, being virtual is not as 
time saving as may be perceived. Often, digital set up with a patient takes more time, while virtual 
engagement is one –to-one, and is more time consuming for the staff than delivering community 
classes or  
 
Innovation in the way of joint working in leisure centres is welcome, although has become a 
challenge. As many of the centres are used as vaccination centres and therefore the space isn’t 
available to deliver in the community.  Discharge of patients and avoiding readmission is most 
effective when rehab services work with NERS to continue the benefits of exercise and rehab.  This 
has been a challenge for local authorities during the pandemic and we hope this can be addressed 
longer term.   
 
 

Solutions 

 
Increased use of prehab 
Prehab has the benefits of preparing patients for their treatment and increasing the outcomes on 
discharge. As an example BCUHB has engaged joint approach Rehab Ltd to offer prehab to long 
wait knee patients: 

 
“This will be a collaborative piece of work delivered by BCUHB and Joint Approach Rehab Ltd. 
The pilot will first align a prehabilitation programme to the needs of long waiters on the stage 
4 (waiting over 52 weeks) knee orthopaedic pathway. For the identified cohort of long waiters, 
an innovative technological solution to prepare patients for surgery will be delivered, 
promoting independent management of their condition in their home environments. It will 
include evidence-based education and exercise programmes combining expertise from 

Tudalen y pecyn 61

https://keepingmewell.com/what-is-physiotherapy/what-is-musculoskeletal-out-patient-physiotherapy/
https://keepingmewell.com/what-is-physiotherapy/what-is-musculoskeletal-out-patient-physiotherapy/


 
 

Physiotherapy, Psychology, Nutrition and Strength and Conditioning in a single integrated 
package. The information within the programme will enable patients to personalise their 
approach to their pre-habilitation and transform the way in which BCUB prepare their patients 
for arthroplasty surgery.” 
Source BCUHB FOI response to the CSP and Versus Arthritis Cymru. 

 
Innovative models such as this should be commonplace across Wales and will increase the number 
of patients being discharged successfully without further need for treatment.   
 
General Multi morbidity rehab services 
Many patients have comorbidities requiring several types of rehab on discharge.  This 
multiplication of service requirements could be streamlined by providing multi-morbidity rehab 
services, allowing one waiting list and one point of contact for the patient being discharged.  
 
Evaluation 
At some point an evaluation of the changes made in the pandemic will show whether changes to 
virtual working improved outcomes for patients. The necessity of change at the time is recognised 
by the CSP, however taking stock of the long term changes to service delivery is becoming 
increasingly important as time goes on. 
 
Increased presence of Physiotherapist and AHPs in primary Care 
After discharge and rehab patients will generally wish to self-manage their conditions using 
resources and occasional expert advice. The most convenient and accessible location for further 
advice is in primary care.  Increasing the workforce in this setting over the longer term will benefit 
the wider health service and help in the preventative side of health care.  
First Contact Practitioners already work in primary care, and are trained to an advanced level to be 
the first point of contact for a patient in a GP surgery.  Many have been funded on transformation 
or pilot project money across Wales.  A more consistent and sustainable funding source would 
expand this workforce and provide GP surgeries with advanced practice skills.  Investing in this 
workforce will alleviate pressures elsewhere, including readmissions.    
 
 

About the CSP and Physiotherapy 

 

The Chartered Society of Physiotherapy is the professional, educational and trade union body for 

the UK’s 58,000 chartered physiotherapists, physiotherapy students and support workers.  The 

CSP represents 2,400 members in Wales. 

 

Physiotherapists use manual therapy, therapeutic exercise and rehabilitative approaches to 

restore, maintain and improve movement and activity.  Physiotherapists and their teams work 

with a wide range of population groups (including children, those of working age and older 

people); across sectors; and in hospital, community and workplace settings.  Physiotherapists 

facilitate early intervention, support self management and promote independence, helping to 

prevent episodes of ill health and disability developing into chronic conditions. 

 

Physiotherapy delivers high quality, innovative services in accessible, responsive and timely ways.  

It is founded on an increasingly strong evidence base, an evolving scope of practice, clinical 

leadership and person centred professionalism.  As an adaptable, engaged workforce, 

Tudalen y pecyn 62



 
 

physiotherapy teams have the skills to address healthcare priorities, meet individual needs and to 

develop and deliver services in clinically and cost effective ways.  With a focus on quality and 

productivity, physiotherapy puts meeting patient and population needs, optimising clinical 

outcomes and the patient experience at the centre of all it does. 

Tudalen y pecyn 63



HSC(6)-09-22 Papur 6 / Paper 6 

 

 

Senedd Cymru Health and Social Care Committee consultation on Hospital Discharge and its 
Impact on Patient Flow Through Hospitals 
 
Executive summary 

 

The Royal College of Speech and Language Therapists (RCSLT) Wales welcomes the opportunity to 
provide written and oral evidence as part of the committee’s inquiry on hospital discharge and its 
impact on patient flow through hospitals.  Our response focusses on the key themes raised within 
the terms of reference and is based on discussions with our members across Wales.   

 

Key points 

 

 Our members report the main barriers and pressure points include capacity limitations 
within social care to support frail elderly patients in the community and across reablement 
services.  

 Ongoing issues with regards to the nursing and the health and social care workforce is 
impacting on the ability to deliver speech and language therapy interventions in some areas 
as speech and language therapists (SLTs) are required to support ward staff with 
fundamentals of care.  It is vital that Allied Health Professionals (AHPs) are protected from 
redeployment given their central role in enabling people to live well at home.  

 A focus and investment in rehabilitation and community support programmes is also 
essential to effectively support the ‘home first: discharge to recover and assess’ pathway.  
There are positive discussions with regards the AHP role within primary care model but 
sustained funding is required.  

 A strong recurrent theme from some health boards was that the need for 
neurorehabilitation was a significant contributory factor for patient delays, with patients 
sometimes experiencing protracted lengths of stay.  Focus and investment in this area is 
required. 
 
About the Royal College of Speech and Language Therapists 
 

1. RCSLT is the professional body for speech and language therapists, SLT students and 
support workers working in the UK.  The RCSLT has 17,500 members in the UK (650 in 

Tudalen y pecyn 64



2 
 

Wales) representing approximately 95% of SLTs working in the UK (who are registered with 
the Health & Care Professions Council).  We promote excellence in practice and influence 
health, education, care and justice policies. 

 
2. Speech and language therapy manages the risk of harm and reduces functional impact for 

people with speech, language and communication support needs and/ or swallowing 
difficulties. 

 
3. As part of emergency care and discharge planning, SLTs work closely with other services, 

such as physiotherapists and occupational therapists, to assess and support patients’ needs.  
They help to prevent a cycle of emergency readmissions by working with individuals and 
their families to develop personalised strategies to manage their speech, language, 
communication and swallowing difficulties.  For example, they develop feeding plans and 
daily exercises that patients can follow at home and that community-based staff can 
supervise.  By developing personalised care plans, SLTs can help patients to understand 
their own health needs and support them to feel safe and confident when they return 
home. 

 
The scale of the current situation with delayed transfers of care from hospital. 
 

4. Our members report that there are significant numbers of patients in acute hospital beds 
who are medically fit to leave hospital but who are currently unable to be discharged due to 
the lack of carers in the social care system.  There is sustained demand and pressure in 
hospitals due to a combination of factors including the need to increase non-Covid activity 
whilst there continues to be sustained high level of Covid circulating in the community 
resulting in hospitalisations and self-isolation for the workforce.  Ongoing issues with regard 
to the nursing and the health and social care workforce are impacting on the ability to 
deliver speech and language therapy interventions in some areas as SLTs are required to 
support ward staff with fundamentals of care.  Length of stay is also impacted significantly 
by difficulties in securing care packages for patients who need them.  In some hospitals 
pressure is so acute that we understand that senior leadership are considering closing/de-
escalating non urgent services and redeploying staff.  
 

The impact of delays in hospital discharge, both on the individual and the patient flow through 
hospitals and service pressures.  
 

5. From a system perspective, members report that delayed discharges impact on the number 
of beds available for admitting patients leading to longer waiting times in accident and 
emergency departments or cancellations of planned admissions.  There is daily pressure on 
beds with the need to expedite discharge of transfer from acute to rehab sites.  This affects 
the AHP workforce including speech and language therapy who have to prioritise patients 
who need discharge.  Wards have also been re-configured to meet the needs of the patients 
admitted.  For example, Covid vs non-Covid beds. 
 

6. For individual patients, many of whom are over the age of 65, discharge delays can lead to 
poorer outcomes through the loss of independence, confidence and mobility, as well as 
risks of hospital acquired infections, re-admission to hospital or the need for long-term 
support. 

 
The main pressure points and barriers to discharging hospital patients with care and support 
needs including social care services capacity. 

Tudalen y pecyn 65



3 
 

 
7. Our members report that the main barrier for many services is the lack of capacity within 

the social care system to support frail, elderly patients in the community and the ability of 
social care carers to modify diet and/or fluids to enable people to return home safely.  

 
8. Another key factor affecting discharge is the limited capacity within community 

rehabilitation services in some areas.  Community rehabilitation services may be defined as; 
 
‘assessment, advice and tailored rehabilitation support that takes place in settings outside of 
acute hospital wards and that improves people’s health and wellbeing. Community 
rehabilitation helps people with long term conditions, injuries or illness to live well for 
longer1.’ 

Rehabilitation cuts across the health and social care systems supporting people in different 
settings, and often reducing the need for care and hospital admissions.  It supports 
recipients to remain as independent as possible and participate in education, work, family 
life and their community and society as a whole.   Community rehabilitation can improve 
recovery rates from illness and injury and thereby limit the level of social care needed after 
discharge from hospital.  Community rehabilitation can also enable people to better self-
manage their long-term conditions and slow the impact of degenerative diseases, both of 
which create knock on savings for social care budgets.   

 
9. Our members tell us that despite the impact of high-quality rehabilitation on quality of life 

and long-term NHS and social care costs, community rehabilitation is often piecemeal and 
varies significantly depending where you live in Wales.  In many cases, patients are only 
being referred to speech and language therapy for crisis management and there are missed 
opportunities to engage in advanced care planning and active treatment. 

 
10. Our members have commented that often, community care packages do not provide the 

communication support required (in terms of numbers of hours needed for intervention, 
education and support by SLTs) as the capacity for independent living dwindles.  These 
packages frequently do not recognise the need for older people to have adequate 
communication abilities and the need for adequate nutrition if swallowing is compromised.  
This also increases the demand on family members who also require support and education 
as how to best assist the older person to maintain the best functional ability at home.  This 
situation is exacerbated by the impact of shielding and social isolation as a result of the 
pandemic.   

 
11. These concerns about the availability of community rehabilitation provision are echoed in 

two recent reports by Senedd cross party groups.  A 2020 report from the Stroke 
Association, based on evidence collated as part of the Stroke Cross Party Group inquiry, 
revealed that 21% of stroke survivors in Wales reported that they did not receive enough 
support after a stroke2 with only a minority of stroke survivors receiving therapies at 

                                                           
1 Community Rehabilitation Alliance (2020).  Live Well for Longer. Available here   
2 Stroke Association (2018), Lived Experience of Stroke - Chapter 4 Rebuilding lives after stroke, 2018. 

Available: 
https://www.stroke.org.uk/sites/default/files/leos_one_pager_wales_chapter_4.pdf 

Tudalen y pecyn 66

https://www.csp.org.uk/system/files/publication_files/001669_CR%20Parliamentary%20Campaign_Green_MOB%201st.pdf


4 
 

guideline levels3.  The report recommends that ‘Health boards must take immediate steps 
to improve their therapy provision and bring delivery of therapies closer to RCP guidelines.’4 

 
12. The Wales Neurological Alliance has also recently undertaken an inquiry into the impact of 

the Welsh Government’s neurological delivery plan.  The report recognises that there has 
been investment in neurological rehabilitation but highlighted that there remain low levels 
of availability of community services stating; 

 
‘Many poor experiences were described by contributors, in particular in relation to a lack of 
availability of community-based services such as physiotherapy, speech and language 
therapy, occupational therapy, continence advice and support, services that help people to 
be physically active, mental health services and emotional support. ‘5 

13. We welcome the drive towards integration and an increasing focus on moving services 
closer to home.  We are pleased to have recently joined the AHP leadership group for the 
Strategic Primary Care Programme.  A number of speech and language therapy services 
have been able to benefit from monies under the Integrated Care Fund (ICF) with the aim of 
supporting those with swallowing and communication difficulties to keep safe and well at 
home including within care-home settings.  However, funding streams such as the ICF are 
often very short-term which can lead to recruitment challenges.  The AHP Framework for 
Wales recognises that; 

 
‘too often, short term innovations in the AHP services have been established as pilots 
without long term sustainable funding in place.  This has limited the opportunity to scale up 
and support wider adoption across Wales when innovations as detailed above are proven to 
be effective’6.  
 
We strongly recommend that those interventions that deliver high value outcomes are 
identified and adopted across Wales to improve community rehabilitation services as a key 
enabler in supporting discharge and reducing hospital admissions.  A focus and investment 
in rehabilitation and community support programmes is also key to the implementation of 
the ‘home first: discharge to recover and assess’ pathway.  
 

14. A strong recurrent theme from some health boards was that the need for 
neurorehabilitation was a significant contributory factor in patient delays, with patients 
sometimes experiencing protracted lengths of stay.  

 
15. Specialist rehabilitation services play a vital role in the management of patients admitted to 

hospital by supporting patients after their immediate medical and surgical needs have been 
met, and maximising their recovery and supporting safe transition back to the community.  
As our population continues to grow and life expectancy increases, the number of people 
with a neurological condition will continue to rise.  Neurological conditions vary widely in 
terms of their impact; they include progressive, incurable conditions, stable conditions, and 

                                                           
 
4 Stroke Cross Party Group (2020).  The Future of Stroke Care in Wales: report of the inquiry into the 
implementation of the Welsh Government’s Stroke Delivery Plan.   
5 Cross Party Group on Neurological Conditions (2020).  Building the foundations for change: The impact of the 
Welsh Government’s Neurological Delivery Plan  
 
6 Welsh Government (2019). Allied Health Professional Framework for Wales. Available here: 
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-02/allied-health-professions-framwework-for-
wales.pdf 

Tudalen y pecyn 67



5 
 

also sudden-onset neurological incidents that can severely affect a person’s life.  The 
complex nature of these conditions means that professionals require specific expertise and 
training to diagnose and manage them, the specialist care enables the provision of expert 
knowledge, tailored care planning, care integration and multidisciplinary working.  Failing to 
access specialist care can lead to poorer outcomes for people affected by neurological 
conditions and put pressure on other parts of the health and social care system. 

 
16. Specifically, it has inferred by members that the lack of inpatient neuro rehabilitation beds 

(level 2) means that provisioning the rising demand for inpatient neuro rehabilitation is very 
challenging.  As a result patients may experience substantially delayed transfers of care in 
acute hospitals due to waits in accessing inpatient neuro-rehabilitation. 

 
 

What has worked in Wales, and other parts of the UK, in supporting hospital discharge and 
improved patient flow, and identifying the common features.  

 
17. We wish to highlight a number of developments of interest which relate to our view of the 

whole-system approach which is required to improve patient flow, maximising the usage of 
AHPs.  
 

Sandwell and West Birmingham Trust’s ‘rapid response therapy team’ 
 
SLTs play a crucial role in Sandwell and West Birmingham Trust’s ‘rapid response therapy team’. 
They work alongside other AHPs and attend A&E to: 

 prevent unnecessary hospital admissions, via a highly responsive service that operates 12 
hours a day, 365 days a year to assess patient needs. 

 work collaboratively with social work colleagues to support the patient to return home. 

 deliver urgent speech and language therapy assessment within three hours in community, to 
ensure patients’ swallowing can be managed at home by community staff.  

 

SLTs have helped to reduce costs and improve patient outcomes at the Trust by providing intensive 
therapy to ensure patients start eating and drinking as soon as possible to avoid the use of tube 
feeding and allow a safe return home with community speech and language therapy support.  As 
part of an integrated care approach, they also work closely with the discharging and community 
teams to ensure patients identified as at risk of readmission receive appropriate support in the 
home setting, and are psychologically and physically prepared to return home.  The Trust’s 
integrated care service has helped to relieve winter pressures on A&E services and create financial 
savings and improved outcomes for patients.  As a consequence, it has reduced hospital admissions 
by 2,478 per year, reduced length of stay in hospital from 10 days to seven days, and saved 
approximately 17,000 bed days, which has the potential to reduce costs by more than £7 million.  

 

Cardiff and Vale University Health Board SLTs at the front door at A&E  

 

Attending an emergency department is associated with a high risk of admission for older people, 
who are admitted to hospital more frequently and then stay in hospital longer than other patients. 
Having SLTs at the ‘front door’ of A&E departments enables them to make rapid interventions to 
ensure that people are admitted to hospital only for urgent medical care.  During the integrated 

Tudalen y pecyn 68



6 
 

therapy project which spanned 3 months, the following outcomes were achieved thus 
demonstrating the need for and benefits of speech and language therapy input prior to admission to 
the ward. 

 

 17 admissions were prevented in the Assessment Unit (AU), which were led by SLT.  Close 
liaison with the Community Resource Team SLT Team was essential, as they could provide 
support on the day of discharge. 

 67 chest infections prevented by SLTs in AU, saving £102,912. 

 A review of length of admission for those admitted with a chest infection was undertaken 
for the second month of the project. The mean length of stay was 5.8 days. If this were to 
be the average for the year this would represent an additional cost saving of an average of 
8.4 bed days saved per person which would equate to a saving of £20,508. 

 The projected annual saving would be £998,748. 
 
What is needed to enable people to return home at the right time, with the right care and support 
in place, including access to reablement services and consideration of housing needs. 

 
18. Delayed transfers of care are multifactorial so no single intervention will provide overall 

success.  A whole-system approach is needed.  AHPs’ skills are required in order to help 
people remain at home, at the front door of hospitals, supporting timely discharge and 
enabling successful transitions back into the community.  Professor David Oliver, Visiting 
Fellow from The King’s Fund has stated that  
 
‘AHPs are critical in getting patients back to their own home quickly form the front door of 
the hospital and ensuring good inpatient rehabilitation and discharge planning.’7 

 
19. The RCSLT firmly believes that multidisciplinary admission and discharge teams across the 

hospital environment should include SLTs, with therapy led discharge planning for people 
with complex health care needs.  When planning the configuration of services, it is vital to 
ensure that the right professionals with the right skills are employed to meet the needs of 
the local population.  

 
20. We are concerned at reports that redeployment of AHPs is once more being considered to 

bolster workforce challenges with regard to nursing and health care support workers, 
particularly given the importance of AHPs to successful discharge planning.   

 
21. During the first wave of the COVID-19 pandemic, the RCSLT supported appropriate 

redeployment of SLTs into other roles.  Our members were keen to volunteer at this time of 
national crisis.  However, 21 months later we have seen the impact that the pandemic, 
including this period of redeployment, has had on speech and language therapy services 
and the people who rely on them.  Given these risks, we do not support the redeployment 
of SLTs away from services that are already under extreme pressure as they attempt to 
restore services, reduce waiting lists and meet targets.  We believe that there are more 
cost-effective alternatives that have been used successfully in some areas and could be 
used more widely, for example bringing back retired staff or using volunteers or students to 
increase system capacity. 
 
Further information 

 

                                                           
7 https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/about-us/whos-who/david-oliver  

Tudalen y pecyn 69

https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/about-us/whos-who/david-oliver


7 
 

22. We hope this paper will be helpful in supporting the committee discussions around 
discharge and patient flow. We would be happy to provide further information if this would 
be of benefit.  Please see below our contact details. 

Confirmation 

 

This response is submitted on behalf of The Royal College of Speech and Language Therapists in 
Wales.  We confirm that we are happy for this response to be made public. 

Tudalen y pecyn 70



2 Rhagfyr 2021 

Annwyl Russell 

Deiseb P-05-1078 Cynyddu cyllid ar gyfer gwasanaethau iechyd meddwl a gwella amseroedd aros i 

bobl sydd angen help mewn argyfwng. Mae angen newid!  

Ystyriwyd y ddeiseb uchod gan y Pwyllgor Deisebau, a thrafodwyd ddiwethaf yn ein cyfarfod ar 15 

Tachwedd, ochr yn ochr â gohebiaeth gan y Ddirprwy Weinidog Iechyd Meddwl a Lleisiant, a'r 

deisebydd. 

Yn y cyfarfod nododd y Pwyllgor y bydd yn cymryd amser i sefydlu ac ymgorffori dull gweithredu 

Llywodraeth Cymru o ran darparu gwasanaeth 24 awr y dydd lle cynigir ymatebion priodol a llwybrau 

cymorth. Felly cytunodd yr aelodau i ysgrifennu atoch i wneud cais bod y ddeiseb a'r ohebiaeth yn 

cael eu cynnwys fel rhan o waith craffu ar wasanaethau iechyd meddwl yn y dyfodol. 

Mae rhagor o wybodaeth am y ddeiseb, gan gynnwys gohebiaeth gysylltiedig, ar gael ar ein gwefan 

at: https://busnes.senedd.cymru/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=35006&Opt=3.  

Os oes gennych unrhyw ymholiadau, cysylltwch â thîm clercio'r Pwyllgor drwy’r cyfeiriad e-bost isod, 

neu drwy ffonio 0300 200 6454. 

Yn gywir 

Jack Sargeant AS 

Cadeirydd  

Y Pwyllgor Deisebau 
— 
Petitions Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

Deisebau@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddDeisebau  

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
Petitions@senedd.wales  

senedd. wales/SeneddPetitions 
0300 200 6565 Russell George AS  

Cadeirydd 

Y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol 

Tŷ Hywel  

Bae Caerdydd 

CF99 1SN 

HSC(6)-09-22 PTN 01

Tudalen y pecyn 71

Eitem 4.1

https://busnes.senedd.cymru/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=35006&Opt=3


 

 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Tudalen y pecyn 72



 

 

14 Ionawr 2022 

Annwyl Jack 

Deiseb P-05-1078 Cynyddu cyllid ar gyfer gwasanaethau iechyd meddwl a gwella 

amseroedd aros i bobl sydd angen help mewn argyfwng. Mae angen newid! 

Diolch i chi am eich llythyr dyddiedig 2 Rhagfyr 2021 ynghylch y ddeiseb uchod, lle gwnaethoch ofyn 

i'r Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol ystyried y ddeiseb hon a gohebiaeth gysylltiedig mewn 

unrhyw waith craffu ar wasanaethau iechyd meddwl yn y dyfodol. 

Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer y Chweched Senedd 

Fel aelod o’r Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol, byddwch yn ymwybodol bod iechyd meddwl a 

mynd i’r afael â’r ôl-groniad o amseroedd aros yn feysydd blaenoriaeth a ddaeth i’r amlwg yn sgil ein 

hymgynghoriad ar flaenoriaethau’r Pwyllgor ar gyfer y Senedd hon. Yn dilyn hynny, gwnaethom 

nodi'r ddau fater yn ein strategaeth ar gyfer y Chweched Senedd fel blaenoriaethau i’w hystyried ym 

mlwyddyn gyntaf y Senedd hon. 

Anghydraddoldebau iechyd meddwl 

Yn unol â'n strategaeth, lansiwyd ymholiad i anghydraddoldebau iechyd meddwl, ddydd Llun 10 

Ionawr. Byddwn yn ystyried yn benodol pa grwpiau neu gymunedau sydd fwyaf tebygol o gael eu 

heffeithio’n anghymesur gan iechyd meddwl gwael, pa rwystrau y maent yn eu hwynebu wrth gael 

mynediad at wasanaethau, a yw polisi presennol yn mynd i’r afael i raddau ddigonol â’r materion hyn, 

a pha gamau pellach y gallai fod eu hangen i wella iechyd meddwl a chanlyniadau, a lleihau 

anghydraddoldebau iechyd meddwl yng Nghymru. 

Mae rhagor o wybodaeth am yr ymchwiliad hwn – gan gynnwys manylion am sut i gyflwyno 

tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig erbyn y dyddiad cau, sef dydd Iau 24 Chwefror – ar gael ar ein gwefan. 

Byddai croeso i’r deisebydd rannu ei safbwynt â ni. 

Y Pwyllgor Iechyd a  
Gofal Cymdeithasol  
— 
Health and Social Care 
Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddIechyd@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddIechyd  

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddIechyd@senedd.cymru 

senedd.cymru/SeneddIechyd 
0300 200 6565 

Jack Sargeant AS 

Cadeirydd  

Y Pwyllgor Deisebau 

HSC(6)-09-22 PTN 02

Tudalen y pecyn 73

Eitem 4.2

https://busnes.senedd.cymru/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=37759
https://busnes.senedd.cymru/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=37759
https://busnes.senedd.cymru/documents/s120718/Health%20and%20Social%20Care%20Committee%20Sixth%20Senedd%20Strategy.pdf
https://busnes.senedd.cymru/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=38553
https://senedd.cymru/pwyllgorau/y-pwyllgor-iechyd-a-gofal-cymdeithasol/


 

 

Effaith yr ôl-groniad o ran amseroedd aros ar bobl yng Nghymru sy'n aros am ddiagnosis neu 

driniaeth 

Ar hyn o bryd rydym yn cynnal ymchwiliad i effaith yr ôl-groniad o ran amseroedd aros ar bobl yng 

Nghymru. Yn ogystal ag archwilio materion sy’n ymwneud ag amseroedd aros am ddiagnosis a 

thriniaeth iechyd meddwl a chorfforol, mae’n cynnwys ystyried mynediad at therapïau seicolegol a 

chymorth emosiynol i bobl a allai fod yn profi pryder neu drallod o ganlyniad i amseroedd aros hir. 

Er mwyn llywio ein hymchwiliad, rydym wedi cynnal sesiynau tystiolaeth lafar gyda rhanddeiliaid 

allweddol ar draws y sector iechyd, yn ogystal â chyhoeddi galwad am dystiolaeth ysgrifenedig. Er 

bod y gwaith hwn yn dal i fynd rhagddo, a'n bod heb ddod i unrhyw gasgliadau eto, un o’r themâu 

sy’n dod i’r amlwg yw’r effaith y mae’r ôl-groniad o ran amseroedd aros yn ei chael ar iechyd meddwl 

pobl. Yn ogystal â gorfod aros i gael mynediad at wasanaethau iechyd meddwl a chorfforol, mae 

pobl hefyd yn wynebu heriau o ran cael mynediad at gymorth i'w helpu i reoli eu hiechyd corfforol a 

meddyliol tra'u bod yn aros am ddiagnosis neu driniaeth. 

Mae rhagor o fanylion am ein hymchwiliad – gan gynnwys y dystiolaeth yr ydym wedi’i chlywed hyd 

yn hyn – ar gael ar ein gwefan. 

Hyderaf fod y wybodaeth hon o gymorth i’ch Pwyllgor a’r deisebydd. 

Yn gywir 

 

Russell George AS 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol  

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu’n Saesneg We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Tudalen y pecyn 74

https://busnes.senedd.cymru/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=38257


Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 75

Eitem 6Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 107

Eitem 7Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



T u d a l e n  1 |  14 

Cyflwyno Tystiolaeth ar gyfer Ymgynghoriad y Senedd ar ‘Ryddhau o ysbytai 

a’r effaith ar lif cleifion trwy ysbytai’ (Ymchwiliad y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal 

Cymdeithasol) 

7 Ionawr  2022 

Cyd-destun Sefydliadol 

Mae Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr yn gyfrifol am wella iechyd 

poblogaeth Gogledd Cymru a sicrhau darpariaeth briodol o ofal iechyd o 

ansawdd uchel.  

Poblogaeth 

Mae poblogaeth Gogledd Cymru oddeutu 700,000 ac mae wedi'i gwasgaru ar 

draws chwe Awdurdod Lleol Ynys Môn, Gwynedd, Conwy, Sir Ddinbych, Sir y 

Fflint a Wrecsam.  

Yn arbennig o berthnasol i'r ymgynghoriad hwn mae'r boblogaeth oedrannus gan 

fod mwyafrif yr oedi wrth ryddhau yn dod o fewn y grŵp hwn. Mae'r tabl isod yn 

dangos proffil oedran y boblogaeth yn ardal y Bwrdd Iechyd o'i gymharu â 

phoblogaeth Cymru gyfan. Mae hyn yn dynodi cyfran uwch na'r cyfartaledd o'r 

boblogaeth sy'n oedrannus (65+) ac yn oedrannus iawn (85+). 

Mae gan BIPBC rai o'r ardaloedd mwyaf difreintiedig yng Nghymru, gyda 12% o 

boblogaeth Gogledd Cymru yn byw yn y bumed ran fwyaf difreintiedig o 

gymunedau yng Nghymru. Mae tair o'r 10 ward fwyaf difreintiedig yng Nghymru, 

fel y'u mesurir gan Fynegai Amddifadedd Lluosog Cymru (WIMD) yng Ngogledd 

Cymru. Mae'r graffeg isod yn dangos yr amddifadedd cymharol mewn 

cymunedau yng Ngogledd Cymru, gan gynnwys y rhai mwyaf difreintiedig -  

HSC(6)-09-22 Papur 8 / Paper 8

Tudalen y pecyn 119

Eitem 8



T u d a l e n  2 |  14 

 

 

 

 

Gweithio mewn Partneriaeth 

Mae trefniadau gwaith partneriaeth sefydledig rhwng y Bwrdd Iechyd, 

Awdurdodau Lleol, y Trydydd Sector a phartneriaid eraill yng Ngogledd Cymru. 

Mae'r Bwrdd Partneriaeth Rhanbarthol yn dod yn fwyfwy effeithiol wrth hyrwyddo 

cydweithio a goruchwylio datblygiad datrysiadau arloesol i ddarparu 

gwasanaethau iechyd a gofal integredig. Ar hyn o bryd mae'r Bwrdd Partneriaeth 

Rhanbarthol yn goruchwylio'r buddsoddiad o £2.2m o adnoddau ychwanegol a 

ddyrannwyd gan Lywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer Cynllun y Gaeaf ar gyfer Iechyd a 

Gofal Cymdeithasol.  Mae'r holl adnodd hwn wedi'i ddyrannu i Awdurdodau Lleol i 

gydnabod y rôl hanfodol sydd gan y sector hwn i gael effaith bositif ar lif ysbytai 

trwy leihau oedi cyn rhyddhau. 

Mae'r amgylchedd positif hwn ar gyfer gweithio ar y cyd yn ffurfio cyd-destun 

pwysig ar gyfer ystyried y materion a amlinellir yn y ddogfen hon mewn perthynas 

ag oedi cyn rhyddhau o'r ysbyty. Mae'r Bwrdd Iechyd yn cydnabod bod heriau 

penodol y mae partneriaid yn yr Awdurdod Lleol yn eu hwynebu, yn enwedig o 

ran recriwtio a chadw staff gofal. Mae'r Bwrdd Iechyd yn parhau i weithio ar y cyd 

i geisio nodi datrysiadau lleol arloesol i'r heriau hyn. 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 120



T u d a l e n  3 |  14 

 

Lefelau Hanesyddol o Oedi cyn Rhyddhau 

Mae oedi cyn rhyddhau wedi bod yn her ar draws y Bwrdd Iechyd ers cryn 

amser. Cyn y pandemig roedd lefel sylfaenol o oedi fel arfer tua 110 o gleifion ar 

unrhyw adeg, ond mae hyn bellach wedi cynyddu'n sylweddol fel y nodir yn yr 

ymatebion isod. 

 

Ymateb i Gwestiynau'r Ymgynghoriad 

Mae'r adran ganlynol yn darparu ymatebion i'r cwestiynau a nodwyd yn yr 

ymgynghoriad. 

 

1. Y sefyllfa bresennol gydag oedi wrth drosglwyddo gofal o'r ysbyty 

Mae oedi cyn rhyddhau yn parhau i gyflwyno heriau wrth reoli capasiti cleifion 

mewnol ar draws ysbytai llym a chymunedol. Mae'r graff isod yn dangos lefel 

y cleifion “ffit yn feddygol ar gyfer rhyddhau” sy'n parhau i fod mewn ysbytai ar 

draws y Bwrdd Iechyd dros y 14 wythnos ddiweddaraf -  

 

 

Fel y nodwyd uchod, mae'r oedi yma’n effeithio ar ysbytai llym a chymunedol, 

gyda data ar gyfer 17 Rhagfyr yn dangos 167 o welyau llym yn llawn (52%) yn 

ogystal â 151 o welyau ysbyty cymunedol (48%). Mae cyfanswm yr oedi o 

318 yn cyfateb i oddeutu 11 ward ar draws ysbytai'r Bwrdd Iechyd.  

Mae nifer o resymau dros oedi, yn ymwneud â materion mewn ysbytai, mewn 

gwasanaethau cymunedol a lleoliadau gofal annibynnol. Mae'r tabl isod yn 

dangos cipolwg ar y rhesymau dros oedi fel y'u cofnodwyd yn y Bwrdd Iechyd 

-  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 121



T u d a l e n  4 |  14 

 

 

 

 

 

Fel y gwelir o'r data uchod, mae 48% o'r oedi'n codi o ganlyniad i gleifion yn 

aros i gael mynediad at ofal yn y gymuned, p'un ai gartref, mewn cartref 

preswyl neu gartref nyrsio. Mae hyn yn adlewyrchu'r pwysau ar y 

gwasanaethau hyn a'r heriau capasiti cyfredol. Yn ddaearyddol, ceir oedi ar 

draws pob un o ardaloedd yr Awdurdod Lleol yng Ngogledd Cymru er 

gwaethaf trefniadau gweithio positif ar lefelau awdurdod unigol a rhanbarthol. 

Mae'r oedi hyn yn adlewyrchu pwysau ar y system a amlinellir yn fanylach yn 

nes ymlaen yn yr ymateb hwn. 

 

2. Effaith oedi ar yr unigolion dan sylw  

Gall oedi cyn rhyddhau gael effaith sylweddol ar iechyd a lles cleifion yn y 

tymor byr a'r tymor hwy. 

Gall cyfnodau estynedig o orffwys yn y gwely'n ddiangen yn yr ysbyty arwain 

at wastraffu cyhyrau a cholli symudedd gyda risg uwch o godymau, doluriau 

gwasgu, colli annibyniaeth a hyder, mwy o risg o heintiau a gafwyd yn yr 

ysbyty a dirywiad o ran nam gwybyddol; yn enwedig i gleifion â dementia. 

Mae oedolion hŷn yn arbennig o agored i effeithiau niweidiol ansymudedd sy'n 

digwydd gydag arhosiad hir yn yr ysbyty. Ar ôl dim ond deg diwrnod o orffwys 

yn y gwely, gall oedolion hŷn golli hyd at 1kg o fàs cyhyrau ac 16% o'u 

cryfder.  

Gall oedi, ynghyd â'u heffeithiau negyddol cysylltiedig fel y cyfeiriwyd atynt 

uchod, arwain at ofyniad am lefel uwch o ofal yn gynharach nag y byddai wedi 

bod yn angenrheidiol fel arall, gan gynnwys derbyniad cynharach i ofal tymor 

hir. Yn ychwanegol at yr effeithiau niweidiol ar yr unigolyn dan sylw, mae hyn 

yn cael effaith ariannol bosibl trwy gynyddu costau gofal.   

Reasons for Delay - Snapshot 17th December 2021

Reason 

Number of 

Delays %

Awaiting domicillary care 75 23.6%

Awaiting residential care home 36 11.3%

Awaiting nursing home 43 13.5%

Awaiting social care assessment 28 8.8%

Awaiting health assessment 67 21.1%

Awaiting health transfer 47 14.8%

Other 22 6.9%

Total 318 100%

Tudalen y pecyn 122



T u d a l e n  5 |  14 

 

Mae cyfnodau arhosiad hirach a mesurau ymweld cyfyngedig yn amddifadu 

cleifion o gysylltiad â'u cymunedau lleol a'u teuluoedd, a all effeithio'n 

negyddol ar les meddyliol ac emosiynol.  Mae'r effaith hon yn ymestyn i 

deuluoedd a gofalwyr yn ogystal â'r cleifion eu hunain. Er bod gweithredoedd 

fel cyflwyno technoleg a galwadau fideo wedi cynorthwyo, rhaid cydnabod na 

allant ddisodli'r budd a geir o gyswllt wyneb yn wyneb â theulu a ffrindiau. 

Yn ogystal â'r effaith ar y cleifion sy'n aros i gael eu rhyddhau, mae cleifion 

sy'n aros am gael eu derbyn mewn rhannau eraill o'r system iechyd yn cael 

eu heffeithio hefyd. Mae diffyg gwelyau oherwydd oedi cyn rhyddhau yn 

arwain at anallu i dderbyn cleifion ag anghenion mwy llym, gofal yn cael ei 

ddarparu mewn lleoliadau nad ydynt fwyaf priodol ar gyfer angen clinigol yr 

unigolyn ac oedi wrth asesu a gwneud diagnosis mewn lleoliadau fel yr Adran 

Achosion Brys. 

Mae diffyg argaeledd gwelyau hefyd yn effeithio ar ofal wedi'i gynllunio. Mae 

defnyddio gwelyau llawfeddygol i ddarparu ar gyfer cleifion meddygol brys yn 

arwain at ganslo triniaethau a gynlluniwyd. O safbwynt y claf, mae'r oedi 

parhaus wrth dderbyn yn arwain at ansicrwydd pellach, anghysur ac o bosibl 

niwed o ganlyniad i gyflyrau'n dirywio tra bod cleifion yn aros i gael eu derbyn. 

Disgrifir yr effeithiau hyn yn fanylach yn yr adran ganlynol. 

 

3. Effaith oedi ar y system 

 

Gall oedi cyn rhyddhau gael effaith ar draws y system iechyd a gofal gyfan. 

 

Gofal Cleifion Mewnol  

 

Mae oedi cyn rhyddhau yn arwain at ofal cleifion mewnol mewn lleoliadau nad 

ydynt fwyaf priodol i'w hangen. Mae hyn yn cyflwyno risgiau ychwanegol o 

niwed, yn enwedig i gleifion oedrannus â dementia. Teimlir yr effaith nid yn 

unig yn y lleoliadau llym ond hefyd mewn ysbytai cymunedol.  

 

Mae’r ffaith bod llai o welyau cleifion mewnol ar gael yn arwain at anallu i 

ofalu am y cleifion mwyaf difrifol wael mewn modd amserol, a thrwy hynny'n 

cyflwyno risgiau clinigol ychwanegol. Gall y pwysau cynyddol ar staff arwain 

at ddiffyg amser ar gael i'w dreulio gyda chleifion, gan arwain at brofiad 

cleifion o ansawdd is a llai o amser i ddarparu gofal gwirioneddol dosturiol. 

Mae rheoli stoc gwely is a chydbwyso'r risgiau hyn yn amsugno swm 

anghymesur o adnoddau clinigol a gweithredol ac yn arwain at 

aneffeithlonrwydd.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 123



T u d a l e n  6 |  14 

 

Mae gan Raglen Gwella Gofal Heb ei Drefnu'r Bwrdd Iechyd nifer o gamau 

gweithredu sy'n canolbwyntio ar ofal cleifion mewnol sy'n anelu at wella llif 

trwy'r ysbyty, a thrwy hynny'n lliniaru'r effeithiau negyddol hyn. Mae hyn yn 

cynnwys dilyn egwyddorion y rhaglen llif cleifion SAFER genedlaethol, sydd 

wedi'i chynllunio i alluogi pobl i ddychwelyd adref o'r ysbyty yn iach, yn 

ddiogel ac yn amserol. O dan y rhaglen hon, mae gweithredu Rowndiau 

Bwrdd effeithiol yn hanfodol wrth ddarparu ffocws ar y gweithgareddau 

dyddiol hanfodol sy'n ofynnol i alluogi cleifion i ddatblygu eu gofal heb oedi, 

gan annog her ac uwch-gyfeirio amserol lle nodir oedi. Mae hyn yn cefnogi'r 

nod o ryddhau'n amserol, sy'n ffactor llwyddiant hanfodol yn y gwaith hwn. 

 

Ail faes gwaith allweddol yn y Rhaglen Gwella Gofal Heb ei Drefnu, sy'n 

effeithio ar y galw am welyau cleifion mewnol, yw darparu Gofal Brys ar yr Un 

Diwrnod (SDEC). Mae'r Bwrdd Iechyd yn sefydlu unedau SDEC ar bob safle 

llym gyda chymorth cyllid gan Lywodraeth Cymru. Nod yr unedau hyn yw trosi 

gofal gwely brys i ofal dydd ar bob cyfle. Maent yn ddatblygiad hanfodol wrth 

reoli cleifion ag anghenion gofal brys y gellir trin eu cyflwr yn effeithiol heb eu 

derbyn. Trwy'r unedau hyn gellir osgoi derbyniadau diangen, lleihau pwysau 

gwelyau a gwella profiad cleifion a staff.  

  

Adrannau Achosion Brys  

 

Mae anallu i dderbyn yn amserol o ganlyniad i bwysau ar welyau cleifion 

mewnol yn arwain at dagfeydd mewn Adrannau Achosion Brys, mwy o risg 

glinigol a gofal llai urddasol.  

 

Mae capasiti mewn Adrannau Achosion Brys wedi gostwng ymhellach ers 

dechrau'r pandemig oherwydd yr angen i reoli risgiau COVID-19 a sicrhau 

bod cleifion yn cael eu gwahanu'n ddigonol fel mesur atal heintiau allweddol.  

O ganlyniad, mae'r gallu i asesu cleifion newydd yn amserol a rheoli 

adnoddau clinigol mewn modd hyblyg yn cael ei leihau.  Bydd gweithredu 

gofal brys yr un diwrnod, fel y disgrifir uchod, yn lleihau'r pwysau mewn Adran 

Achosion Brys trwy alluogi trosglwyddo cleifion priodol yn gyflymach o'r Adran 

Achosion Brys. Yn ogystal, bydd yr unedau'n derbyn cyfeiriadau uniongyrchol 

gan feddygon teulu, therapyddion a chlinigwyr eraill, a thrwy hynny osgoi'r 

angen am bresenoldeb yn yr Adrannau Achosion Brys. Bydd hyn yn caniatáu i 

staff mewn Adran Achosion Brys ganolbwyntio ar nifer llai o gleifion, gan 

ddarparu asesiad mwy amserol a llai o oedi yn yr Adran. 

 

Yn ogystal â chanolbwyntio ar leoliad cleifion mewnol, mae gan y rhaglen 

gofal heb ei drefnu ddatblygiadau parhaus sydd wedi'u cynllunio i leihau nifer 

y rhai sy'n mynd i Adrannau Achosion Brys, a thrwy hynny'n lliniaru'r pwysau 

Tudalen y pecyn 124



T u d a l e n  7 |  14 

 

a gwella profiad cleifion. Mae'r gwasanaeth Asesu a Thriniaeth Clinigol 

Integredig Unigol (SICAT), a sefydlwyd yn 2018, yn parhau i ehangu ei ystod 

o gefnogaeth i gynorthwyo i reoli'r galw a chyfeirio cleifion at y gwasanaeth 

mwyaf priodol. Mae hyn wedi cael effaith bositif ar y gallu i ddarparu gofal i 

gleifion mewn lleoliadau cymunedol yn hytrach nag Adran Achosion Brys. 

Mae'n cynnig gwell cefnogaeth glinigol i barafeddygon yn y fan a'r lle ac 

mae'n ehangu i wasanaeth cyngor clinigol ehangach ar gyfer ystod o weithwyr 

proffesiynol gofal iechyd cymunedol fel Nyrsys Ardal, i gefnogi gwneud 

penderfyniadau. Mae'r gwasanaeth hwn hefyd yn cael ei gyflwyno i Gartrefi 

Gofal i alluogi mynediad at gyngor clinigol i'w staff gyda'r nod o osgoi 

galwadau ambiwlans diangen a chludiant i'r ysbyty. Mae'r ddarpariaeth hon yn 

cysylltu fwyfwy â'r gwasanaeth 111 ar lefel genedlaethol. 

 

Gwasanaethau Ambiwlans 

 

Mae llai o gapasiti mewn adrannau achosion brys i asesu cleifion mewn modd 

amserol yn arwain at oedi wrth drosglwyddo cleifion. Mae hyn yn arwain at 

risgiau clinigol cynhenid i'r cleifion dan sylw, er bod y rhain yn cael eu lliniaru i 

raddau, trwy weithio'n effeithiol rhwng timau Adrannau Achosion Brys a 

chriwiau Ymddiriedolaeth GIG Gwasanaethau Ambiwlans Cymru (WAST).  

Mae risg ehangach i'r gymuned hefyd sy'n deillio o ddiffyg adnoddau WAST 

i'w defnyddio mewn galwadau brys. Mae hyn yn cael effaith uniongyrchol ar 

ansawdd gofal a niwed sy'n codi trwy oedi wrth ymateb i sefyllfaoedd sy'n 

peryglu bywyd.  

 

Mae'r gwaith yn parhau mewn partneriaeth â Gwasanaeth Ambiwlans Cymru i 

wneud y defnydd gorau o arbenigedd clinigol parafeddygon ac i gysylltu 

parafeddygon â chlinigwyr eraill i gefnogi eu penderfyniadau. Mae llwybrau 

blaenoriaeth wedi'u nodi mewn perthynas â phoen yn y frest, problemau 

anadlu a chodymau. Mae'r gwasanaeth asesu clinigol y cyfeiriwyd ato yn 

gynharach a 111 yn galluogi gwneud penderfyniadau yn fwy priodol a gyda 

llwybrau cymunedol addas ar waith yn caniatáu ar gyfer gofal cymunedol 

priodol yn hytrach na chludiant i Adran Achosion Brys. Gan weithio gyda 

WAST, nod y Rhaglen Gwella Gofal Heb ei Drefnu yw cynyddu nifer y 

galwadau ambiwlans y gellir eu datrys yn briodol heb droi at gludo i’r ysbyty. 

Mae ailgyfeirio cleifion at Unedau Mân Anafiadau (MIUs), lle mae hyn yn 

briodol, yn galluogi asesu a thrin yn gyflymach, llai o amser trosglwyddo ar 

gyfer cerbydau ambiwlans a llai o alw ar Adrannau Achosion Brys. Cefnogir 

hyn gan raglen addysg wedi'i thargedu ar gyfer Ymarferwyr Nyrsio i ddarparu 

darpariaeth Uned Mân Anafiadau cyson ar draws pob safle. 

 

Gofal wedi'i gynllunio  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 125



T u d a l e n  8 |  14 

 

Mae oedi cynyddol wrth ryddhau yn arwain at lai o welyau ar gael i gyflawni 

triniaethau gofal a gynlluniwyd i gleifion mewnol. Mae hyn yn arwain at 

amseroedd aros cynyddol a risg gysylltiedig o niwed i gleifion wrth iddynt aros 

am eu llawdriniaethau, yn enwedig mewn gwasanaethau fel canser.  

 

Bydd cyflwyno llwybrau gofal newydd a all wneud y gorau o driniaeth cleifion 

allanol a gofal dydd yn cael effaith ar y pwysau ar welyau, ond ni all hyn 

liniaru effaith oedi cyn rhyddhau. 

 

 

 

Gofal Cychwynnol 

 

Pan fo gwasanaethau ysbyty dan bwysau ac yn methu ag asesu a derbyn 

cleifion mewn modd amserol, gall pwysau gynyddu mewn gofal cychwynnol. 

Mae hyn yn berthnasol o fewn oriau gofal cychwynnol arferol a hefyd yn y 

cyfnod y tu allan i'r oriau a'r penwythnos. Mae diffyg mynediad prydlon at 

gyngor a diagnosteg yn cynyddu'r risg i gleifion yn y gymuned.  

 

Mae cyflwyno Canolfannau Gofal Cychwynnol Brys ledled Gogledd Cymru, a 

all dderbyn cyfeiriadau yn uniongyrchol gan ofal cychwynnol neu gan 

Adrannau Achosion Brys, yn darparu capasiti ychwanegol mawr ei angen ar 

draws y system. Bydd sicrhau bod hyn yn cyd-fynd â dull 111 yn Gyntaf a 

defnyddio Canolfannau Gofal Cychwynnol Brys fel dewis arall yn lle mynd i 

Adrannau Achosion Brys yn cynnig budd pellach. 

 

Gofalwyr  

 

Mae anallu i ddarparu mynediad amserol priodol yn arwain at y baich ar 

ofalwyr yn cynyddu ynghyd â'r pryder am ddiogelwch a lles anwyliaid.  Gall 

hyn effeithio'n ddifrifol, gan danseilio cydnerthedd trefniadau gofal cartref i 

gleifion.   

 

Lles Staff 

 

Ni ellir gorbwysleisio'r pwysau eithafol y mae staff yn gweithio oddi tano mewn 

gwasanaethau gofal heb ei drefnu.  Mae'r effeithiau ar y system a ddisgrifir 

uchod yn amlygu eu hunain mewn heriau beunyddiol i staff. Effeithir yn 

ddifrifol ar y gallu i ddarparu gofal tosturiol o ansawdd uchel.  Mae hyn yn cael 

effaith uniongyrchol ar forâl a lles staff, yn ychwanegol at straen personol 

llwythi gwaith dwys.   

 

Tudalen y pecyn 126



T u d a l e n  9 |  14 

 

Mae angen recriwtio staff ychwanegol ar gyfer llawer o fodelau amgen 

cynlluniedig y Bwrdd Iechyd.  Er enghraifft, bydd angen recriwtio tua 115 o 

staff ychwanegol er mwyn gwella lefelau staffio mewn Adrannau Brys.  Mae'n 

anochel y bydd effaith negyddol ar atyniad y rolau hyn mewn system o dan 

gymaint o bwysau.  Ynghyd â hyn, mae'r gallu i gadw staff yn y gwasanaethau 

presennol yn fwyfwy heriol.  

 

4. Yr amrywiadau mewn arferion rhyddhau ysbytai ledled Cymru a 

thrawsffiniol, a sut maent yn diwallu anghenion gofal a chymorth 

unigolion  

 

Yn hanesyddol, bu amrywiadau yn y dulliau o fynd i'r afael â heriau oedi cyn 

rhyddhau.  Mae mentrau cenedlaethol megis Rhyddhau i Adfer ac Asesu 

(D2RA) yn dod â mwy o gysondeb er nad yw hyn wedi'i wreiddio'n llawn eto 

ac mae gwersi a ddysgwyd o weithredu'n gynnar yn cael eu defnyddio i wella'r 

dull hwn.  

 

O ganlyniad i'r gwaith i weithredu Rhyddhau i Adfer ac Asesu, ceir darpariaeth 

gwasanaethau fwy cyson ledled Gogledd Cymru.  Mae rheolaeth cleifion yn 

unol â llwybrau D2RA safonol wedi'i fabwysiadu'n llawn, gyda chleifion yn cael 

eu cefnogi gan y Timau Adnoddau Cymunedol yn unol â gofynion y llwybr 

rhyddhau maent arno.  Mae datblygu capasiti o fewn gwasanaethau 

cymunedol, gan weithio mewn partneriaeth ag Awdurdodau Lleol trwy Dimau 

Adnoddau Cymunedol, yn canolbwyntio fwyfwy ar yr angen i sicrhau 

trefniadau rhyddhau prydlon, diogel a phriodol.   

 

Ochr yn ochr â hyn, mae gwaith pellach yn mynd rhagddo i sicrhau bod 

cynllunio rhyddhau o'r ysbyty yn cychwyn mor gynnar â phosibl yn ystod yr 

arhosiad yn yr ysbyty.  Mae trefniadau lleol diwygiedig yn cael eu gweithredu 

gyda chysondeb cynyddol ledled Gogledd Cymru gan gynnwys Rowndiau'r 

Bwrdd, Heidiau Diogelwch, a chynllunio rhyddhau'n gynnar. Mae'r Bwrdd 

Iechyd yn bwrw ymlaen â gwaith yn y meysydd hyn o dan ei Raglen Gwella 

Gofal Heb ei Drefnu sydd â phedwar llif gwaith allweddol; 

 Camu i fyny yn y gymuned 

 Drws ffrynt a man argyfwng ysbytai 

 Gofal ar gyfer cleifion mewnol 

 Gwasanaethau yn y gymuned 

 

Mae'r camau yn y ffrydiau gwaith hyn wedi'u halinio i gefnogi cyflwyno'r “chwe 

nod ar gyfer gofal brys ac argyfwng” a bennwyd gan Lywodraeth Cymru.  

 

Mae gweithio trawsffiniol gyda GIG Lloegr yn adeiladol ac mae bellach yn 

elwa o fabwysiadu'r model D2RA yn y ddwy wlad.  Mae yna rai 

gwahaniaethau o ran dull gweithredu, megis yr agwedd at “ddewis” wrth aros 

am ryddhau sy'n cynnig cyfleoedd i ddysgu gwersi.  Mae'r heriau sy'n 

wynebu'r Bwrdd Iechyd wrth ymdrin â rhyddhau trawsffiniol yn debyg i'r rhai a 

Tudalen y pecyn 127



T u d a l e n  10 |  14 

 

brofir yng Ngogledd Cymru.  Mae'r diffyg capasiti mewn cartrefi gofal a 

lleoliadau adfer ac adsefydlu priodol mewn cartrefi gofal yn gyson yn 

cyflwyno'r anawsterau mwyaf.    

 

5. Y prif wasgbwyntiau a rhwystrau i ryddhau cleifion ysbytai sydd ag 

anghenion gofal a chymorth, gan gynnwys capasiti'r gwasanaethau 

gofal cymdeithasol 

 

Ceir nifer o wasgbwyntiau a rhwystrau sy'n effeithio ar y gallu i ryddhau. Fodd 

bynnag, mae'n bwysig cydnabod bod rhai o'r atebion yn ymwneud â rheoli 

galw cleifion ac ymatebion i angen clinigol yn y gymuned yn fwy effeithiol, fel 

bod mynediad i'r ysbyty yn cael ei leihau lle mae dewisiadau diogel, priodol 

eraill yn bodoli.  

 

Mae gallu gofal cychwynnol, gwasanaethau cymunedol, gwasanaethau 

ambiwlans a'r trydydd sector yn gweithio gyda'i gilydd i gynnig ymatebion di-

oed i angen heb droi at ysbyty, yn gam cyntaf sylfaenol.  Ar draws y Bwrdd 

Iechyd, ceir Gwasanaethau Camu i fyny a ddarperir gan y Timau Adnoddau 

Cymunedol i leihau derbyniadau i ysbytai. Gall cyfeiriadau i'r gwasanaethau 

hyn fod trwy amrywiaeth o ffynonellau gan gynnwys Gofal Cychwynnol ac 

Awdurdodau Lleol.  Cydlynir mynediad at y gwasanaethau hyn drwy’r 

Pwyntiau Mynediad Unigol (SPOAs) sy’n dwyn ynghyd ystod o adnoddau i 

gynnig yr ymateb mwyaf priodol i anghenion unigolion.  

 

Mae buddsoddi mewn modelau asesu a thriniaeth nad ydynt yn arwain at ofal 

cleifion mewnol mewn ysbytai hefyd yn allweddol.  Mae'r Bwrdd Iechyd wedi 

rhoi nifer o wasanaethau o'r fath ar waith yn ei safleoedd ysbytai ac mae 

bellach yn mabwysiadu model cyson o wasanaethau Gofal Brys ar yr Un 

Diwrnod.  Mae'r rhain yn agwedd hanfodol ar gapasiti a fydd yn arwain at well 

profiad i gleifion, parhad gofal yn y gymuned a rhyddhau capasiti gwelyau ar 

gyfer cleifion sy'n ddifrifol wael ac y mae arnynt angen y lefel hon o ofal yn 

glinigol.  Mae gwasanaethau'n ehangu ar bob safle gyda'r nod o gyflawni 

gwasanaeth 12 awr y dydd, 7 diwrnod yr wythnos.  Yn ychwanegol, mae gan 

bob un o'r ysbytai staff CRT yn yr Adrannau Brys i nodi cleifion sy'n briodol i 

gael eu cefnogi i ddychwelyd adref i wella ac atal ail-dderbyn trwy brosesau 

rhyddhau "cywir tro cyntaf".  

 

Mae angen i systemau gweithio mewn ysbytai i gefnogi llif cleifion effeithiol a 

chynllunio rhyddhau effeithiol fod yn gweithredu ar y lefel orau bosibl ar draws 

pob safle.  Yn ganolog i hyn mae'r dull SAFER y cyfeirir ato yn adran 3 uchod.  

Mae hyfforddiant staff ar ddefnyddio offerynnau rhyddhau yn effeithiol yn rhan 

hanfodol ynghyd â rhyngwynebu effeithiol rhwng staff ysbytai a chymunedol, 

gan gynnwys Awdurdodau Lleol.  Mae Timau Cymunedol hefyd wedi datblygu 

Gwasanaethau Eiddilwch ar safleoedd yr ysbytai sy'n darparu cefnogaeth 

cydafiachedd arbenigol i'r cleifion sydd fwyaf mewn perygl o arosiadau hir yn 

yr ysbyty. Mae'r gwasanaethau hyn yn canolbwyntio ar adnabod a chefnogi 

Tudalen y pecyn 128



T u d a l e n  11 |  14 

 

cleifion yn ystod y diwrnodau cyntaf ar ôl eu derbyn, a lle bynnag y bo hynny'n 

bosibl, sicrhau y cânt eu rhydau i fynd adref yn gynnar ac yn ddiogel. 

 

Yn ystod y 18 mis diwethaf mae'r Bwrdd Iechyd wedi cyflwyno Biwro Cartref 

yn Gyntaf ym mhob un o'r tri ysbyty llym. Mae'r gwasanaethau hyn yn darparu 

hybiau ar gyfer cydgysylltu ac olrhain cleifion sydd ar lwybrau D2RA.  Mae'r 

hybiau hyn yn ganolbwynt ar gyfer rhyngweithio rhwng timau Llym / 

Cymunedol a thimau Awdurdodau Lleol ar y trefniadau rhyddhau ar gyfer pob 

claf.  

 

Mae capasiti'r sector gofal, mewn cartrefi gofal ac yn gynyddol mewn gofal yn 

y cartref, yn bryder mawr ac yn ganolbwynt i weithio ar y cyd â phartneriaid yn 

yr Awdurdodau Lleol.  Mae Awdurdodau Lleol yn wynebu heriau sylweddol 

wrth recriwtio staff gofal ac mae hyn yn cael ei adlewyrchu yn y sector 

annibynnol.  Mae hyn yn arwain at anallu i ddarparu gofal yn ddiogel mewn 

lleoliadau cymunedol gan gael effaith uniongyrchol ar ysbytai.  Mae gwaith ar 

y cyd yn parhau i ddatblygu atebion arloesol i recriwtio yn y sector gofal o dan 

adain Grŵp Gweithlu Rhanbarthol Gogledd Cymru.  

 

Mae'r Bwrdd Iechyd wedi gweithio mewn partneriaeth â'r Awdurdodau Lleol i 

ehangu cylch gwaith “cyfleusterau camu i lawr” fel bod y gwasanaethau hyn 

yn fwy cyson ag egwyddorion D2RA.   Datblygiad Cartref Gofal newydd 

Marleyfield yn Sir y Fflint, a agorwyd yn Hydref 2021, yw'r enghraifft gyntaf o 

welyau D2RA pwrpasol mewn cartref gofal yng Ngogledd Cymru.  Datblygwyd 

Prosiect Marleyfield mewn partneriaeth â Chyngor Sir y Fflint, ac mae'n 

cynnwys 16 o welyau D2RA ac mae wedi darparu model ar gyfer prosiectau 

ar y cyd yn y dyfodol.   

 

Mae'r Bwrdd Iechyd ac Awdurdodau Lleol hefyd yn gweithio i addasu cartrefi 

gofal presennol at ddibenion gwasanaethau asesu a ddarperir yn fwy ar y cyd.  

Mae heriau i gartrefi gofal yn y dull hwn oherwydd trosiant cynyddol cleifion 

trwy gartrefi a'r angen i sicrhau gofal diogel yng nghyd-destun COVID-19. Lle 

na ellir creu capasiti hwn mewn cartrefi gofal, mae'r Bwrdd Iechyd wedi 

gweithredu datrysiadau dros dro mewn ysbytai trwy greu wardiau “parod i 

fynd adref”, gan bontio'r bwlch rhwng gofal llym a chefnogaeth yn y gymuned.   

 

6. Y gefnogaeth, yr help a'r cyngor sydd ar waith ar gyfer gofalwyr sy'n 

aelodau teulu a gofalwyr di-dâl yn ystod y broses  

 

Mae ymgysylltu â theuluoedd a gofalwyr yn rhan hanfodol o ddarparu 

gwasanaethau cychwynnol a chymunedol.  Mae timau cymunedol yn ceisio 

cysylltu cleifion a'u teuluoedd / gofalwyr â sefydliadau'r trydydd sector i 

sicrhau bod ganddynt fynediad at gefnogaeth a fydd yn cynorthwyo i gynnal a 

gwella iechyd a lles.  Mae'r gefnogaeth hon ar gael cyn ac wedi rhyddhau. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 129



T u d a l e n  12 |  14 

 

Mae dymuniadau cleifion a gofalwyr yn ganolog i'r broses cynllunio rhyddhau 

a chaiff y rhain eu mynegi trwy ddefnyddio'r dull “Beth sy'n bwysig i mi” o 

gynllunio rhyddhau.  Mae hyn yn sicrhau bod anghenion a dymuniadau 

cleifion a gofalwyr yn elfen allweddol o'r broses. 

 

Bydd y cyswllt â gofalwyr yn cychwyn wrth i'r broses ryddhau gael ei 

chynllunio.  Mae hyn yn cael ei gynnal trwy gyswllt gan staff ysbytai i sicrhau 

eu bod yn ymgysylltu ac yn cael gwybod am gynnydd.  

 

Mae taflenni gwybodaeth penodol ar gael i gleifion a gofalwyr ynghylch y 

broses ryddhau i gynorthwyo â'u dealltwriaeth a'u cyfranogiad.  Fel rhan o'r 

broses cynllunio rhyddhau, rhennir gwybodaeth am sefydliadau a chefnogaeth 

y trydydd sector â chleifion a gofalwyr  

 

 

7. Yr hyn sydd wedi gweithio yng Nghymru, a rhannau eraill o'r DU, wrth 

gefnogi rhyddhau o'r ysbyty a gwella llif cleifion, a nodi'r nodweddion 

cyffredin  

 

Mae cefnogi rhyddhau effeithiol ac amserol yn dibynnu ar fynd i'r afael â nifer 

o faterion allweddol. 

 

Mae'n hollbwysig mabwysiadu systemau gweithio cyson, wedi'u seilio ar 

dystiolaeth.  Mae enghreifftiau yn cynnwys: 

 Ymateb drws ffrynt effeithiol o fewn adrannau brys, gyda modelau 

megis Gofal Brys yr Un Diwrnod ar gael.   

 Defnydd arloesol o staff, megis lleoli therapyddion a gweithwyr 

cymdeithasol yn yr Adran Achosion Brys  

 Mynediad i “glinigau poeth” i alluogi diagnosis cyflym heb orfod troi at 

ofal yr Adran Achosion Brys  

 Llif cleifion mewnol effeithiol trwy fabwysiadu modelau megis y rhaglen 

SAFER yn gyson gyda ffocws ar gynllunio rhyddhau o'r pwynt derbyn a 

staff sydd wedi'u hyfforddi'n briodol ac â'r sgiliau priodol i gynllunio 

rhyddhau'n effeithiol.  

 

Mae mabwysiadu'r dull Cartref yn Gyntaf lle mae cynllunio rhyddhau yn 

canolbwyntio ar y flaenoriaeth o ddychwelyd claf i'w gartref ei hun gyda 

chefnogaeth briodol yn hytrach na mathau eraill o leoliad wedi profi'n 

llwyddiannus wrth gynnal annibyniaeth, ac mae hefyd yn osgoi cynyddu 

pecynnau a chostau gofal.  Mae defnyddio'r amgylchedd mwyaf priodol ar 

gyfer asesu yn arwain at baru cymorth gofal parhaus ag angen cleifion ac yn 

osgoi “gor-ragnodi” cymorth gofal.  

 

Cynllunio ac ymarfer rhyddhau cyson, yn seiliedig ar egwyddorion D2RA 

gydag ystod eang o wasanaethau cymunedol ar gael i ddiwallu sbectrwm 

anghenion cleifion.  

Tudalen y pecyn 130



T u d a l e n  13 |  14 

 

 

Datrysiadau arloesol i broblemau capasiti, megis addasu cyfleusterau cartrefi 

gofal at ddibenion gwahanol a chreu cyfleusterau camu i fyny a chamu i lawr 

a gefnogir gan wasanaethau iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol.  

 

Cydweithio effeithiol gyda'r trydydd sector i gyfrannu at y rhwydwaith o 

gefnogaeth sy'n ofynnol i hyrwyddo annibyniaeth a lles ar ôl rhyddhau.  Mae 

sefydliadau megis Gofal a Thrwsio yn gweithio gyda'r Biwroau Cartref yn 

Gyntaf i nodi a darparu cefnogaeth i gleifion i'w galluogi i ddychwelyd adref.  

Gall y gefnogaeth hon gynnwys ymweliadau â chartref y claf i sicrhau ei fod 

yn ddiogel dychwelyd.  

 

 

 

8. Yr hyn sydd ei angen i alluogi pobl i ddychwelyd adref ar yr adeg 

briodol, gyda'r gofal a'r gefnogaeth briodol ar waith, gan gynnwys 

mynediad at wasanaethau ail-alluogi ac ystyried anghenion tai 

 

Mae nifer o ofynion y mae'n rhaid eu bodloni'n gyson ac mae'n rhaid sicrhau 

bod cyd-weithio cadarn yn sail iddynt.  

 

Mae angen ystod o wasanaethau yn y gymuned a all fod yn hyblyg i ddiwallu 

anghenion unigolion.  Rhaid i'r rhain fod yn seiliedig ar un asesiad cadarn ar 

draws iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol, a ddarperir trwy weithio ar y cyd yn 

effeithiol.   

Mae defnyddio cynllunio a chefnogi rhyddhau yn gyson ac yn drylwyr yn 

hanfodol, yn seiliedig ar egwyddorion D2RA.  Mae ymgysylltiad effeithiol yn y 

model gan yr holl bartneriaid, gyda safonau ymateb gwasanaeth cytunedig a 

phrosesau effeithiol ar gyfer uwchgyfeirio lle mae oedi'n digwydd, hefyd yn 

cynorthwyo i gyflawni.  

 

Model darparu gofal cartref cadarn sy'n dwyn gwasanaethau iechyd, 

Awdurdodau Lleol a'r sector annibynnol ynghyd i sicrhau cydnerthedd. Mae 

partneriaethau arloesol gyda chymdeithasau tai yn cynnig cyfle i ddarparu 

opsiynau newydd o ran gofal yn y cartref.   

 

Cydbwysedd priodol o ddarpariaeth cartrefi gofal ochr yn ochr â gofal yn y 

cartref i ddiwallu anghenion newidiol y boblogaeth a sicrhau bod capasiti yn 

cael ei ddefnyddio yn unol ag egwyddorion D2RA.  

 

Gwasanaethau ymatebol a all sicrhau y gellir addasu a chyfarparu cartrefi 

cleifion yn briodol i alluogi cynnal annibyniaeth.   

 

Dulliau newydd ac arloesol o gynllunio'r gweithlu ac adnoddau a all gefnogi 

gweithlu cynaliadwy yn y sector gofal.  Rhaid i hyn gael ei ategu gan gamau i 

sicrhau lefelau cyflog priodol i staff gofal cymdeithasol.   

Tudalen y pecyn 131



T u d a l e n  14 |  14 

 

Mae dulliau arloesol o recriwtio ar y cyd yn cynnig y potensial i staff gydnabod 

cyfleoedd ar gyfer datblygu gyrfa yn y sector gofal ac iechyd cyfun.  

 

Defnydd hyblyg o adnoddau ar draws iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol, gan 

gynnwys defnyddio cyllidebau cyfun, gan oresgyn yr heriau sy'n deillio o 

wahanol gyfundrefnau ariannol e.e. codi tâl am ofal cymdeithasol.   

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 132



HSC(6)-09-22 Papur 8 / Paper 8  

Health and Social Care Committee evidence on hospital discharge 

Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board – Summary briefing 

submission 

 

Current CTM UHB Situation regarding delayed transfer of care 

 There are currently 136 patients in our hospital inpatient beds that 

could be transferred into a social care setting. 
o 66 of these patients are awaiting care home placements  

o 70 are waiting for packages of care to be established. 
 

 A joint spot audit of delayed transfer of care (DTOC) patients across 
CTM was carried out in early December by health and social care 

staff. This identified 82 patients that could be appropriately placed 
in a residential or nursing home while waiting for packages of care 

or care home placements to be confirmed and organised. 
 

Background 

 Despite various schemes, incl. short term funding designed to 
support discharge, discharge rates have remained fairly static. One 

of our Local Authorities discharges between 14-25 patients per 

week and the staywell@home team accept 16-28 patients per week 
(data Oct 2021 to 9/12 2021). It has been observed that there has 

been an increase in the complexity of care packages required.  
 

 Funding for community teams in health and social care has 
historically come via different funding routes with different 

timescales. An example of this is that health has been allocated 
non-recurrent winter funds via NHS Wales and social care have 

submitted winter funding requests via the Regional Partnership 
Board (RLB). 

 
 Specifically, over the past 18 months the table below shows 

patients waiting for packages of care have steadily increase within 
CTM and across Wales. 

Tudalen y pecyn 133

http://ctuhb-intranet/sites/search


  
  

 

Key issues 

 There has been an increase in patients waiting for packages of care 
due to the unavailability of these packages from Local Authority 

providers. This information is provided by Local authorities to our 
“silver command” weekly operational meetings to manage covid and 

winter pressures. 
 

 There has been a large increase in patients waiting for a social 
worker allocation due to social worker vacancies and recruitment 

issues. 

 
 Local Authorities are experiencing an increase in demand and case 

complexity from outside health referrals combined with the 
challenges in securing the required number of staff for the service. 

 
 The number of patients discharged into social care settings has 

remained constant, however the complexity of the patients have 
increased and there are more requests and assessments for a 

higher intensity level of care required. 
 

 The concept of a single point of access has been replaced with 
individual patient referrals who meet a set criteria referred to 

specific teams.  
 

 The Health Board is committed to working closer with Local 

Authorities to ensure we are consistently aligned on the numbers of 
patients who are medically fit to be discharged. There are examples 

where understandings can differ between organisations on whether 
patients are truly ready to be discharged or whether they require 

additional needs before they can leave (e.g. awaiting prescriptions 
etc). 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 134

http://ctuhb-intranet/sites/search


  
  

The table below identifies patients waiting to be transferred to a 

‘discharge to assess’ pathway: 

 

Impact 

 The most readily observed impact is on the flow of patients through 

our acute hospital sites. This ultimately results in patients spending 
longer waiting in our Emergency Departments, Medical Assessment 

Units as well as waiting in ambulances on hospital forecourts before 
they are able to be admitted into the hospital. This causes knock-on 

delays for the Ambulance Service who then struggle to respond to 
urgent calls within the community, putting lives at risk.   

 
 As the table below sets out, the Health Board’s 4 hour compliance is 

lower in 2021 compared to 2020 along with the performance of the 

15 minute ambulance handover target. This is an accepted 
symptom / result of lack of patient flow causes by an inability to 

discharge patients consistently.  
 

Health Board Overall 
01 Nov 20 
- 30 Nov 

20 

01 Nov 21 
- 30 Nov 

21 

4 Hour Compliance 76.89% 65.25% 

Attendances 11388 14272 

12 Hour Breaches 
1095 

(90.4%) 
1463 

(89.7%) 

 

 As an example of this, our data shows that one of our acute 

hospitals admits 1-2 patients per day more than it is able to 
consistently discharge. This means the hospital steadily fills up and 

eventually operates beyond its capacity requiring further short term 
measures to bring it back into its operating capacity. This can have 

a knock on impact for elective surgery if elective beds have to be 
utilised for unscheduled care patients.  

 

 

Health Board Overall 

01 Nov 20 

- 30 Nov 
20 

01 Nov 21 

- 30 Nov 
21 

15 Minute Handover 49.86% 33.48% 

1 Hour Handover 
81.3% 
(467) 

65.4% 
(799) 

Total Handovers 2501 2312 

Tudalen y pecyn 135

http://ctuhb-intranet/sites/search


  
  

Possible solutions 

 The social care system requires support for recruitment and 
retention. A suggestion could be for social care staff to be employed 

on parity with the health ‘agenda for change’ terms and conditions. 

 
 Funding should be allocated to both health and social care as an 

integrated system, involving key incentives to encourage a closer 
working relationship. 

 
 A holistic review of all the health and social care teams at Regional 

Partnership Board level and a follow on recommendation of how 
these teams can fall under a single point of access for the benefit of 

patients. 
 

 The Health Board is in the process of trying to work with Local 
Authorities to ‘block book’ care home beds to be able to increase 

the amount of medically-fit patients being discharged from our 
acute hospitals. This follows from the Swansea Bay UHB initiative in 

an attempt to improve patient flow.  

Tudalen y pecyn 136

http://ctuhb-intranet/sites/search


HSC(6)-09-22 Papur 9 / Paper 9 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Pencadlys 

 

Headquarters 
Tŷ Glasbury, Ysbyty Bronllys, 
Aberhonddu, Powys LD3 0LY 

Glasbury House, Bronllys Hospital 
Brecon, Powys LD3 0LY 

Ffôn: 01874 711661  Tel: 01874 711661  
    

    
Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth Gymraeg 

  

We welcome correspondence in Welsh 

Bwrdd Iechyd Addysgu Powys yw enw gweithredd Bwrdd Iechyd Lleol 
Addysgu Powys 

Powys Teaching Health Board is the operational name of 
Powys Teaching Local Health Board 

 

Vivienne Harpwood, Cadeirydd / Chair 
 
Carol Shillabeer, Y Prif Weithredwr /  
Chief Executive  

 

 
CS/PH        7 January 2022 

 
Health and Social Care Committee  
Welsh Parliament  
Cardiff 
CF99 1SN 
 

 
 

Dear Health & Social Care Committee  
 

Health and Social Care Committee Inquiry: Hospital discharge and its 
impact on patient flow through hospitals 

 
Thank you for inviting evidence submission in relation to the above inquiry. I am 
pleased to provide this written evidence to contribute to the Committee’s inquiry 
and to provide oral evidence at the session on 27 January 2022.  
 
Powys Teaching Health Board (PTHB) serves a population of approximately 
133,000 people, across three broad natural geographies in North Powys, Mid 
Powys, and South Powys. It makes up a significant footprint in the rural heartland 
of Wales, covering a large geographical area a quarter of the landmass of Wales, 
with only 5% of the population of Wales. This makes it one of the most sparsely 
populated areas.  
 
Powys borders England and all but one of the other health boards in Wales. As 
an entirely rural County with no major conurbations and no acute general 
hospitals, it is one of the most challenged parts of Wales in relation to access to 
services. People have traditionally had to travel outside the County for many 
services, including secondary and specialist healthcare and the cross-border 
links are an important part of the socio-economic life of the County. 
 
The scale of the current situation with delayed transfers of care from 
hospital 

 
The Health Board is responsible for developing and implementing pathways of 
care with a number of NHS and non-NHS partners. Most (non-mental health) 
secondary care is provided by health boards and Trusts bordering Powys. As a 
direct provider of services, the role of the health board is to provide community 
services (pre and post hospital admission) and community hospital care, usually 

Tudalen y pecyn 137



2 

 

focused on rehabilitation and preparation for discharge/step-down. The health 
board therefore has a crucial role in expediating care transfers from secondary 
care into Powys services. 
As a direct provider, the position within PTHB as at 10th January 2021 is as 
follows: 

 
General community hospital beds: 

 
There are nine community hospitals with inpatient beds and one integrated health 
and social care centre with intermediate care beds. As at 10th January 2022 there 
is a provision of 154 community hospital beds. Of these, 142 patients are 
occupied, given an occupancy rate of 92%. 

 
Community hospital length of stay: 

 
The current average length of stay for patients in PTHB community beds is 49 
days. This reflects the difficulty in transferring care into the community or into a 
patients own home with appropriate support. Ideally a community hospital should 
be aiming for a 21-28 day length of stay profile, although with more intensive 
rehabilitation (such as Stroke care) this can be longer. Outcomes for patients 
can be affected by extended lengths of stay including deconditioning, leading to 
greater, ongoing care needs post hospital.  
 

Discharge Fit (can also be classified as a delayed transfer of care): 
 

There are 42 patients in 142 community hospital beds by classified as medically 
fit for discharge equating to 30%. This is much higher than is acceptable and is 
the main contributing factor to extended stays in hospital and the length of stay 
performance. These are categorised as: - 

 

 No. patients ready for discharge Pathway 2 = 10 (LA=10; NHS=0)  

 No. patients ready for discharge Pathway 3 =21 (LA=13; NHS=8) 

 No. patients ready for discharge Pathway 4 = 0  

 No. patient ready with pathway to be determined = 11 
 
Patients returning to Powys from District General Hospitals: 

 
As at 9th January, less than 5 patients were awaiting transfer back into Powys 
from a DGH.  

 
The impact of delays in hospital discharge, both on the individual and the 
patient flow through hospitals and service pressures. 

 
The impact of being delayed in hospital is significant. On an individual patient 
level, the deconditioning associated with extended lengths of stay where 
hospitalisation is not necessary, increases the level of after-care, including long 
term care, needed. This can, at times, make the difference between a patient 
being able to go home with community support services and needing to go into a 
care home. It is essential that optimal timing of hospital discharge can take place 
to enable maximum independence and recovery. The discharge to recover and 

Tudalen y pecyn 138



3 

 

assess is a key development which seeks to reduce unnecessary harm/reduced 
optimisation.  
 
Whilst strenuous efforts and significant focus goes into ensuring wherever 
possible that hospitals are safe environments, the challenges of infection 
prevention and control and of healthcare acquired impacts are clear.   This has 
never been clearer than during the pandemic. It is also the case that patients who 
are delayed in hospital may experience low mood and reduced motivation, the 
recent protections in relation to visiting during the pandemic, despite the best 
efforts of staff, may also have contributed to this. 
 
Due to the lack of domiciliary care a number of patients have had to be discharged 
to interim placements within care homes. Whilst this is preferred to a longer 
hospital stay, it nonetheless brings concerns that people will not return to their 
homes. Conversations to explain pressures and the lack of capacity in community 
resource is met with understanding from patients and families, however, the 
impact on individuals lives through limited care alternatives remains.  
 
In terms of patient flow, the health board currently has approx. one third of its 
patients discharge ready. If these patients were to have the resource to meet their 
need and be discharged, all repatriation requests from other Health Boards and 
Trusts could be met with ample step-up community capacity available. This could 
further support the provision of additional step-up admissions and reduce 
admission to acute beds.  

 
The variations in hospital discharge practices throughout Wales and cross-
border, and how they are meeting the care and support needs of 
individuals. 

 
The Health Board has Care Transfer Coordinators based in acute sites and 
community providers outside Powys that provide urgent and non-emergency care 
for Powys patients. This ensures patients are tracked and discharge planning is 
commenced on the day of admission.  The purpose of these roles is to work with 
provider organisations to ensure the safe timely discharge of patients to 
community hospital-based services in Powys, other community services including 
Nursing and Residential homes or the patient’s own home. 
 
Direct discharge home is the ultimate aim, with families and support networks 
having a point of contact via Care Transfer Coordinators regarding the services 
available in planning for home.    In order to achieve this, daily calls are held with 
all out of county providers to determine how many Powys patients are near to 
being ‘transfer ready’ and the active plans to achieve this. Prior to the Care 
Transfer Coordinator roles being in place (almost a decade), up to 24 patients 
per day could be waiting for transfer back to Powys. The only option available 
was largely a community-hospital transfer. As services have developed during 
this time a much greater proportion of people are able to go directly home and 
the number of patients now typically awaiting a transfer back to a Powys 
community hospital bed is between 2 and 8 per day, with the transfers occurring 
most commonly within 48 hours. Furthermore, the extension of the Home First 

Tudalen y pecyn 139



4 

 

team to a 7 days per week service has also improved repatriation timing, reducing 
delays and overall length of stay reductions. 
 
The general ethos across all acute care provider pathways is to support people 
to return to Powys as soon as possible. The systematisation, daily tracking and 
coordination through the Powys Flow Hub ensures that despite a complex system 
and network of DGHs that support Powys, a consistent approach is taken. 

 
The main pressure points and barriers to discharging hospital patients with 
care and support needs, including social care services capacity. 

 
There are several key pressure points to discharging hospital patients: 
 
1. Social Care capacity: This is a well published and critical issue in relation 

to discharge from hospital. Many patients need some community support 
following hospitalisation and the health board along with partners in the 
Powys Regional Partnership Board has been working to expand the range 
of support available. Whilst in many instances, successful developments 
have positively impacted on patients and their friends and families, the 
shortage of care workers is the most significant matter. The demand for 
and capacity available in relation to domiciliary care for example is 
mismatched. Significant work has taken place to try to reduce the gap, 
however the sustainability of the domiciliary care sector remains 
challenging. 

2. Professional, registered social worker availability: Social care resource is 
depleted with recruitment challenges for qualified social workers including 
securing agency social workers. A trusted assessor model has assisted 
however this does not negate the need for the appropriate number of 
social workers. 

3. Care home capacity: Currently, access to care home placements is 
extremely challenging. On a daily basis  over 20% of care homes are 
closed to admissions and others that are open are often full. Whilst this 
relates particularly to the pandemic, there has been an underlying issue of 
care home sustainability. New models of care; developing care homes as 
wider community assets for example, in the medium and longer term could 
offer greater sustainability potential.  

4. Changning discharge planning practice and broadening provision to 
support. Whilst significant changes in approach and thinking to discharge 
planning is taking place, there remain patients who are being assessed for 
domiciliary care needs in a hospital setting. Ideally, offering patients a 
range of services appropriate to their needs (step-down residential care, 
reablement care) could reduce both the time spent awaiting assessment 
and then a service provision, and the negative impacts of unnecessary 
hospital stay.  

5. Recruitment and retainment within community therapy teams: A significant 
shift has been made over recent years in Powys from the provision of 
therapy support in hospital to this being community based. With an 
increase in the pathway to enable a home first approach, increased 
therapy support in community is required. Recruitment is challenging and 
despite remodelling the service, there continue to be workforce gaps.  In 

Tudalen y pecyn 140



5 

 

addition, a lack of night care provision results in decisions being made 
regarding the potential for a home first approach to be adopted. This is a 
key element that will need unlocking to maximise the numbers of people 
who can be supported at home.  

 
The support, help and advice that is in place for family and unpaid carers 
during the process. 

 
The Third Sector is commissioned to provide support to families and carers via 
Credu: Connecting Carers who work in partnership with the Local Authority and 
the Health Board to deliver the Information, Advice and Support Service for 
Carers in Powys.  All carers and families have care needs assessments via 
Powys County Council (PCC). Literature and support are given at ward level and 
Powys Association of Voluntary Services Community Connectors (another 
service commissioned by the Regional Partnership Board) engage with wards to 
signpost and support families and support networks to engage and assist with 
planning with follow up support given on discharge. 
 
What has worked in Wales, and other parts of the UK, in supporting hospital 
discharge and improved patient flow, and identifying the common features. 
 
There are a number of key features within Powys that have worked to support 
more timely transfers of care, although there is more to do. 
 
1. Care Transfer Coordination – With the complexity of the Powys pathways 

this service seeks to ensure every patient is supported to get back to 
Powys as swiftly as possible. The service is highly valued by DGH partners 
and has had a significant and lasting impact over the last decade. 

2. Clarity of purpose of admission and admitting patients to the ‘rght type of 
care first time’ – as indicated earlier, a greater range of provision and 
‘alternatives’ to a traditional DGH admission means that patients can be 
supported more appropriately with targeted care plans and Expected 
dates of Discharge (a target discharge date agreed by the multi-
professional team and the patient).  

3. ‘Deep dives’/reviews into prolonged Length of Stays (LoS) with a Multi-
Disciplinary Team (MDT) approach including deputy medical director, 
head of nursing, managers within patient flow and ward sisters has given 
a broader perspective to flow and problem solving of flow issues.  This 
benefits from having a different viewpoint from a range of professionals. 

4. The Right Place for Assessment: Taking lengthy assessments out of 
hospitals such as decision support tools has decreased length of stay, and 
the Complex Care Team undertaking the planning of care packages and 
placements which was previously held by the wards has supported flow. 
This has alleviated pressures on clinicians and allowed for a specific team 
to manage the commissioning process.  Establishing a trusted assessor 
for reablement patients has condensed assessment times through 
efficiency and a simpler referral process.  

5. Regularised, clear systems of managing patient flow: Systematising the 
flow of patients, smoothing out demand and supply of services and clear 
escalations assist in enabling a more ‘managed’ approach to flow 

Tudalen y pecyn 141



6 

 

pathways. This means making the most of the hospital capacity available. 
A range of system and approaches have been used across the UK.  

 
 
What is needed to enable people to return home at the right time, with the 
right care and support in place, including access to reablement services 
and consideration of housing needs. 

 
In summary, shifting services and increasing the capacity from hospital to 
community will make a significant difference to the quality and timeliness of the 
care provided. For example: 

 

 Enhancing reablement and home therapy teams to establish a 
comprehensive wrap-around rehabilitation service. This would avoid the 
potential ‘over-prescribing’ of care in hospitals and allow for patients true 
potential to be sought in a home setting. This needs to be a rapid service 
which has the ability to support discharge as quickly as possible to avoid 
deconditioning and increased need.  

 

 Expand the domiciliary care market including night time provision for those 
who have overnight care needs. This would allow for reablement teams to 
handover care for those who do have longer term needs and decrease the 
number of interim placements being used for those who domiciliary care 
cannot be secured.  

 

 Increased flexibility and partnering with care homes with a particular focus 
on mental health care home beds with care homes embracing a trusted 
assessor approach. The potential to operate more as a single system is 
there, however building trusted assessor relationship and developments is 
key. Furthermore, the deep rooted workforce challenges across health and 
social care, need particular attention in the care home sector.  

 

I hope this is helpful for the inquiry. Please do not hesitate to come back to me 
for any clarification or more information. I look forward to further participating in 
the Inquiry with the Committee. 
 
 Yours sincerely 
 
 

Carol Shillabeer 
Prif Weithredwr  
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 142



1 
 

Y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol: Rhyddhau cleifion o’r ysbyty a’i effaith ar lif cleifion 
trwy ysbytai  
 
Tystiolaeth gan Ymddiriedolaeth GIG Gwasanaethau Ambiwlans Cymru  
 

1. Mae Ymddiriedolaeth GIG Gwasanaethau Ambiwlans Cymru (YGAC) yn croesawu’r 
cyfle i ddarparu tystiolaeth i’r Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol fel rhan o’i 
ymchwiliad i ryddhau cleifion o’r ysbyty ac effaith hynny ar lif cleifion.   
 

2. Fel gwasanaeth ambiwlans mae mater llif cleifion yn un sy’n hanfodol bwysig i ni, o 
gofio ei effaith ar ddrws ffrynt unedau brys, sy’n ymestyn i oedi cyn trosglwyddo’r 
cyfrifoldeb am ofal cleifion gan staff ambiwlans i staff ysbyty, ac felly faint o 
ambiwlansau sydd ar gael i ymateb i argyfyngau yn y gymuned.   

 
3. Rydym ni’n sylweddoli ac yn cydnabod, fel gwasanaeth, fod y materion yn 

gysylltiedig â llif cleifion trwy ysbytai yn gymhleth. Mae’r pandemig cyfredol wedi 
amlygu a gwaethygu’r gwendidau strwythurol a oedd eisoes yn bodoli yn y system 
iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol cyn mis Mawrth 2020, a oedd yn golygu bod cyfnodau 
oedi estynedig i ambiwlansau y tu allan i ysbytai eisoes yn nodwedd o’n system gofal 
iechyd, er nad i’r graddau a welir ar hyn o bryd.   

 
4. Mae’r oedi yma’n cael effaith anorfod ar argaeledd ambiwlansau yn y gymuned. Yn 

ystod ton gyntaf y pandemig gwelwyd lleihad sylweddol yn yr hyn y gellid ei ystyried 
yn ‘weithgareddau arferol’, wnaeth arwain at wella faint o ambiwlansau a oedd ar 
gael, gan nad oedd cymaint o oedi.   

 
5. Wrth i ni symud trwy’r pandemig, a chyrraedd lefelau galw uwch, yn hytrach na 

lefelau arferol, mae’r sefyllfa wedi dirywio’n arwyddocaol ar draws y sector iechyd a 
gofal cymdeithasol.   

 
6. Ar adeg ysgrifennu hyn mae’r don Omicron yn symud tuag at ei brig. Mae dyfodiad 

Omicron wedi arwain at straen aruthrol ar y sector cyfan, gyda lefelau uchel 
absenoldeb staff ar draws Gwasanaeth Ambiwlans Cymru, byrddau iechyd lleol ac 
ym maes gofal cymdeithasol.   

 
7. Mae hyn, wedi’i gyplysu â lefelau galw uchel a llif cyfyngedig trwy ysbytai, wedi 

gweld lefelau perfformiad ambiwlans yn parhau i ddirywio trwy gydol wythnosau 
olaf 2021 ac yn nechrau 2022. Canlyniad hyn yw pobl yn gorfod aros yn hir am 
ambiwlans yn y gymuned, yn cynnwys ar gyfer galwadau melyn blaenoriaeth uwch 
yn ogystal, yn anffodus, ar gyfer galwadau coch lle mae bywyd dan fygythiad, lle 
mae’r perfformiad yn parhau i fod o dan y targed 65% ar draws Cymru.   

 
8. Mae’r graffiau yn y pecyn data yn yr atodiad i’r ddogfen hon yn dangos yr oriau a 

gollwyd oherwydd oedi cyn trosglwyddo yn ystod y misoedd diwethaf. Yr hyn nad 
yw data yn ei gyfleu bob amser yw profiadau gwael iawn cleifion yn aros am ofal 
ysbyty a’r rhwystredigaeth a’r anaf moesol i griwiau ambiwlans, gyda llawer ohonynt 
yn treulio shifft cyfan yn gofalu am un claf y tu allan i ysbyty yn rheolaidd, gan 
wybod yn iawn bod llawer iawn o gleifion yn aros yn y gymuned, lle mae’r risg ar ei 
fwyaf, ac nad oes gofal ar gael iddynt.    

 

Tudalen y pecyn 143



2 
 

9. Yn yr un modd, mae’r effaith ar berfformiad a’r effaith ar brofiadau staff a chleifion 
yn amlwg.   

 
10. Serch dyfodiad amrywiolyn Omicron a’i allu i drosglwyddo’n hawdd, fel gweddill y 

Gwasanaeth Iechyd Gwladol yng Nghymru, mae gan Wasanaeth Ambiwlans Cymru 
gynlluniau cynhwysfawr ar gyfer y gaeaf, yn ogystal â chynllun tymor hir ar gyfer twf 
ac ailddiffinio’r gwasanaeth, gan barhau ei daith at fod yn wasanaeth wedi’i 
wreiddio ar anghenion clinigol yn hytrach nag un sy’n darparu gwasanaeth cludiant.   

 
11. Mae’r cydbwysedd rhwng ymdrin â’r sefyllfa ar unwaith a chynllunio ar gyfer adfer a 

thwf yn anodd, ac mae Bwrdd Gwasanaeth Ambiwlans Cymru yn hynod ymwybodol 
o hynny.   

 
12. Fodd bynnag, mae’r sefyllfa gyfredol yn golygu bod tîm arweinyddiaeth 

Ymddiriedolaeth Gwasanaethau Ambiwlans Cymru wedi cyflymu rhai cynlluniau 
tymor hirach tra’n ymchwilio i’r holl ddulliau cymorth posibl i’r gwasanaeth nawr, yn 
cynnwys y trydydd cais am Gymorth Milwrol i Awdurdodau Sifil, a fydd yn 
gweithredu gyda nifer uwch o swyddogion milwrol (251 o weithredwyr rheng flaen) 
tan ddiwedd mis Mawrth 2022. 

 
13. Mae llawer o’r buddsoddi a’r datblygiadau tymor hirach yma yn canolbwyntio ar drin 

cymaint o gleifion ar leoliad ag y bo modd, gan leihau cludo i’r ysbyty yn ddiangen a 
thrwy hynny leihau’r pwysau ar y system iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol ehangach trwy 
sicrhau osgoi mynd â chleifion i’r ysbyty’n ddiangen.   

 
14. Tra bod rôl i wneud y mwyaf o uwch barafeddygon a chyflwyno dulliau mwy arloesol 

o ddefnyddio staff clinigol i gyflawni hyn, mae’n deg dweud y bydd llwyddiant y dull  
yma yn y tymor hir yn dibynnu yn y pen draw ar fyrddau iechyd, gofal sylfaenol a’r 
sector gofal cymdeithasol yn gweithio gyda’r gwasanaeth ambiwlans mewn modd 
gwahanol, fel un system integredig, i ddarparu gofal i gleifion yn gydweithredol.   

 
15. Mae hyn yn golygu lledaenu llwybrau gofal sy’n bodoli eisoes neu ddatblygu 

llwybrau gofal newydd y gellir atgyfeirio atynt gan glinigwyr gwasanaeth ambiwlans, 
yn ogystal â defnyddio staff clinigol a gofal cymdeithasol yn wahanol ac yn fwy 
priodol i reoli cleifion yn y gymuned i’r graddau y bo’n bosibl ac yn ddiogel gwneud 
hynny.   

 
16. Tra’n cydnabod ei bod yn cymryd amser i gyflwyno newidiadau o’r fath yn aml, mae 

trafodaethau’n cael eu cynnal ar hyn o bryd â nifer o bartneriaid awdurdod lleol i 
ddeall yn well sut y gellir llunio partneriaethau rhwng YGAC a gofal cymdeithasol i 
gynnal mwy o bobl yn eu cartref.   

 
17. Deall y gwasanaethau gofal cymdeithasol a fydd yn ychwanegu’r mwyaf o werth i 

bobl leol a gweithio gyda’n gilydd, un ai i alluogi hawliau atgyfeirio at staff 
ambiwlans iddynt, neu eu datblygu mewn partneriaeth, ar lefel Bwrdd Partneriaeth 
Ranbarthol o bosibl, sydd wrth graidd y trafodaethau hyn.   

 
18. Yn yr un modd, bydd angen datblygu’r opsiynau galwadau brysbennu digidol ac o 

bell yn ehangach dros y misoedd a’r blynyddoedd nesaf, er mwyn lleihau’r angen i 
anfon ambiwlans, gyda’r potensial i atgyfeirio cleifion at elfennau eraill y system 
iechyd neu ofal cymdeithasol.   

Tudalen y pecyn 144



3 
 

 
19. Tra bod gwaith yn parhau i amlinellu’n fanwl y camau a’r modd y gellir cyflawni’r 

uchelgais tymor hirach hwn, mae Gwasanaeth Ambiwlans Cymru wedi bod yn ffodus 
yn derbyn cymorth gan ei gomisiynwyr, i ymdrin â’r pwysau cyfredol ac i fuddsoddi 
yn y staff a’r modelau a fydd yn cyflawni’r uchelgais tymor hirach.   

 
20. Yn ystod y misoedd diweddar mae hyn wedi cynnwys:  

 
(i) Cyflogi 36 clinigydd ychwanegol i weithredu ein Desg Cymorth Clinigol a 

rheoli’r galw trwy frysbennu clinigol cleifion llai difrifol y gellir rhoi cyngor ac 
arweiniad iddynt i osgoi danfon ambiwlans atynt. Mae clinigwyr y Ddesg 
Cymorth Clinigol yn darparu cymorth i griwiau ar leoliad hefyd trwy gyfrwng 
barn a chyngor clinigol ychwanegol, gyda’r nod o osgoi cludo cleifion i’r 
ysbyty lle bo’n ddiogel gwneud hynny.   

(ii) Recriwtio yr hyn sy’n cyfateb i 32 danfonydd meddygol brys amser llawn i 
gynorthwyo gydag ateb galwadau 999.   

(iii) Sefydlu ein “Cell Gaeaf” i gefnogi cydlynu ar draws y system yn ystod tymor 
y gaeaf.   

(iv) Gweithredu ein “Cynllun Diogelwch Clinigol” sy’n caniatàu i ni dargedu ein 
hadnoddau yn unol â’r galw i ddiogelu’r rhai sydd fwyaf bregus yn glinigol.  

(v) Recriwtio atebwyr galwadau 111 ychwanegol i ymdopi â’r cynnydd yn nifer y 
galwadau.   

(vi) Cyflwyno dewislenni newydd ar draws 111 er mwyn ffrydio’r galwadau’n fwy 
priodol.   

(i) Gweithio’n agos â phartneriaid bwrdd iechyd i weithredu brysbennu a 
ffrydio gan feddyg ar-lein.   

(ii) Recriwtio clinigwyr iechyd meddwl i gefnogi ein Desg Cymorth Clinigol – 
disgwylir dechrau defnyddio’r adnodd hwn yn fuan yn 2022.  

(iii) Staff corfforaethol yn darparu cymorth ychwanegol i gydweithwyr rheng 
flaen.  

(iv) Capasiti ychwanegol yn Ysbyty Treforus ac Ysbyty Athrofaol Y Faenor i 
gynorthwyo gyda throsglwyddo cleifion.  

(v) Urdd Ambiwlans Sant Ioan Cymru yn darparu cymorth ychwanegol.  
(vi) Darpariaeth Cludo Cleifion mewn achosion nad ydynt yn rhai brys (NEPTS) 

ychwanegol i gynyddu’r capasiti.  
(vii) Ailgyflwyno a newid proffil y cymorth gan Wasanaeth Tân ac Achub 

Canolbarth a Gorllewin Cymru i gynnwys darparu gwasanaeth cwympiadau 
lefel un. Mae’r hyfforddi’n digwydd ar hyn o bryd a disgwylir i’r gwasanaeth 
hwn fod yn weithredol o fis Ionawr.   

(viii) Cryfhau amrediad o fentrau llesiant staff, yn cynnwys consesiynau ysbyty, 
cymorth staff y Groes Goch, ceir o’r gronfa gerbydau ar gael ar ddiwedd 
shifft, therapi anifeiliaid anwes ac ati.   

 
21. O ran rhyddhau cleifion o’r ysbyty, dylid cofio cyfraniad Gwasanaeth Cludo Cleifon 

mewn achosion nad ydynt yn rhai brys (NEPTS) y Gwasanaeth Ambiwlans yn 
hwyluso rhyddhau cleifion, un ai i’w cartref eu hunain neu i gyfleusterau gofal llai 
dwys.  

 
22. Yn gynharach yn 2021 bu’r Gwasanaeth Cludo Cleifion yn gweithio ar fodelu’r galw 

tebygol am ei wasanaeth trosglwyddo a rhyddhau o’r ysbyty yn ystod misoedd y 
gaeaf. Defnyddiwyd y modelu hwnnw i weithio gyda byrddau iechyd a chomisiynwyr 

Tudalen y pecyn 145



4 
 

i nodi’r cyllid ychwanegol ar gyfer adnoddau ychwanegol trosglwyddo a rhyddhau o’r 
ysbyty i gefnogi llif ychwanegol mewn modd amserol. Mae’r capasiti hwn wedi’i 
ddefnyddio’n dda yn ystod y misoedd diweddar.    
 

23. Tra’n cydnabod y gwaith eang sy’n digwydd ar draws y system, mae’n bwysig mynd 
i’r afael â’r gwendidau strwythurol lluosog yn y gwasanaethau iechyd a gofal 
cymdeithasol, yn hytrach na dibynnu ar ddatrysiadau adweithiol, tymor byr, i 
leddfu’r pwysau a gwella profiadau cleifion, dinasyddion a staff.   

 
24. Mae’n rhaid i hyn gynnwys amgylchedd cyflogaeth lle mae parch a gwobrwyo 

cyfartal i staff iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol, er mwyn hwyluso gwella’r recriwtio i 
swyddi gofal cymdeithasol.   

 
25. Yn yr un modd, tra bo gwaith da yn digwydd ar draws Byrddau Partneriaeth 

Rhanbarthol i atgyfnerthu a chyfoethogi perthnasoedd a gwasanaethau ar draws y 
rhyngwyneb iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol, mae llawer i’w wneud o ran goresgyn 
rhwystrau proffesiynol a chlinigol er mwyn darparu gwasanaethau ystyrlon sy’n 
mynd i’r afael ag anghenion pobl mewn angen.   

 
26. Nid oes yr un o’r uchelgeisiau hyn yn syml i’w cyflawni. Wedi dweud hynny, mae ein 

profiadau yn ystod y pandemig hyd yma yn awgrymu fod gennym ni’r platfform, yr 
ewyllys ar y cyd a’r syniadau i symud yr agenda hon ymlaen yn gyflym, gyda’r lefel 
gywir o gymorth a ffocws, gan gydnabod fod gwedd ddiweddaraf y pandemig ar ffurf 
Omicrom wedi tynnu rhywfaint o sylw oddi wrth y nod hwn.   

 
Diwedd/EVH/Ionawr22 
 
 

 
 
  
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 146



Y cyfnod o hysbysu i drosglwyddo

Welsh Ambulance Services NHS Trust

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

16000

18000

20000

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21

Lo
st

 H
o

u
rs

% of Notification to Handover within 15 minutes against 
Notification to Handover Lost Hours 

SB Lost Hours AB Lost Hours BCU Lost Hours

C&V Lost Hours CTM Lost Hours HD Lost Hours

Powys Lost Hours  Target (Less than 150 hrs per day 95% of the year) % of not. to handover within 15 mins of arrival at hosp.

T
udalen y pecyn 147

https://twitter.com/WelshAmbulance
https://twitter.com/WelshAmbulance
https://www.facebook.com/welshambulanceservice/
https://www.facebook.com/welshambulanceservice/
https://www.instagram.com/welshambulanceservice/?hl=en
https://www.instagram.com/welshambulanceservice/?hl=en


Y cyfnod o hysbysu i drosglwyddo yn ôl Bwrdd Iechyd 

Welsh Ambulance Services NHS Trust

0.00

250.00

500.00

750.00

1000.00

1250.00

1500.00

1750.00

2000.00

2250.00

2500.00

2750.00

3000.00

3250.00

3500.00

3750.00

4000.00

4250.00

4500.00

4750.00

5000.00

5250.00

5500.00

5750.00

6000.00

6250.00

6500.00

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21

Notification to Handover Lost Hours by
Health Board 

SB Lost Hours AB Lost Hours BCU Lost Hours C&V Lost Hours CTM Lost Hours HD Lost Hours Powys Lost Hours

T
udalen y pecyn 148

https://twitter.com/WelshAmbulance
https://twitter.com/WelshAmbulance
https://www.facebook.com/welshambulanceservice/
https://www.facebook.com/welshambulanceservice/
https://www.instagram.com/welshambulanceservice/?hl=en
https://www.instagram.com/welshambulanceservice/?hl=en


Perfformiad Coch

Welsh Ambulance Services NHS Trust

6
6

.0
0

%

6
7

.8
0

%

6
4

.5
0

%

6
7

.7
0

%

7
0

.2
0

%

7
1

.4
0

%

6
8

.5
0

%

6
3

.9
0

%

6
1

.4
0

%

6
0

.8
0

%

5
9

.5
0

%

5
3

.7
0

%

5
9

.6
0

%

6
4

.4
0

%

6
2

.5
0

%

6
1

.0
0

%

6
0

.6
0

%

6
0

.6
0

%

5
7

.8
0

%

5
7

.6
0

%

5
2

.3
0

%

5
0

.0
0

%

5
3

.0
0

%

5
1

.1
0

%

00:00:00

00:02:53

00:05:46

00:08:38

00:11:31

00:14:24

00:17:17

00:20:10

00:23:02

00:25:55

00:28:48

45.00%

50.00%

55.00%

60.00%

65.00%

70.00%

75.00%

80.00%

85.00%

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21

% Of Emergency Responses to Red Calls Arriving Within (up to and including) 8, 9 & 10 Minutes Aganinst Red Calls 95th Percentile

8 minute Target 65% 10 minute 9 minute Red Calls - 95th percentile response time

T
udalen y pecyn 149

https://twitter.com/WelshAmbulance
https://twitter.com/WelshAmbulance
https://www.facebook.com/welshambulanceservice/
https://www.facebook.com/welshambulanceservice/
https://www.instagram.com/welshambulanceservice/?hl=en
https://www.instagram.com/welshambulanceservice/?hl=en


95ed canradd Coch

Welsh Ambulance Services NHS Trust

0
0

:1
7

:3
9

0
0

:1
5

:5
7

0
0

:1
7

:1
4

0
0

:1
6

:4
2

0
0

:1
5

:5
1

0
0

:1
6

:0
1

0
0

:1
6

:2
6

0
0

:1
9

:0
0

0
0

:1
9

:0
2

0
0

:1
7

:4
2

0
0

:1
9

:2
6

0
0

:2
0

:0
4

0
0

:1
8

:5
6

0
0

:1
8

:0
4

0
0

:1
8

:2
9

0
0

:1
9

:0
6

0
0

:1
8

:5
8

0
0

:1
9

:5
3

0
0

:2
1

:1
2

0
0

:2
2

:1
1

0
0

:2
3

:4
2

0
0

:2
4

:4
8

0
0

:2
1

:4
4

0
0

:2
3

:2
7

00:00:00

00:02:53

00:05:46

00:08:38

00:11:31

00:14:24

00:17:17

00:20:10

00:23:02

00:25:55

00:28:48

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21

Red Calls - 95th percentile response time 

T
udalen y pecyn 150

https://twitter.com/WelshAmbulance
https://twitter.com/WelshAmbulance
https://www.facebook.com/welshambulanceservice/
https://www.facebook.com/welshambulanceservice/
https://www.instagram.com/welshambulanceservice/?hl=en
https://www.instagram.com/welshambulanceservice/?hl=en


Galwadau’n galw am ymateb Coch

Welsh Ambulance Services NHS Trust

2
5

4
3

2
1

9
3

2
6

2
6

1
8

9
7

1
8

3
9

1
8

0
5 2

0
3

8

2
5

7
2

2
4

4
0

2
4

4
5

2
5

6
2 2

8
5

0

2
4

6
0

2
0

1
0

2
4

6
9 2
6

5
8

3
0

7
0 3
2

9
2 3

5
8

9

3
3

8
4

3
9

1
4 4
1

2
1

3
8

5
5

3
9

3
5

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21

Total Verified RED Demand Calls 

T
udalen y pecyn 151

https://twitter.com/WelshAmbulance
https://twitter.com/WelshAmbulance
https://www.facebook.com/welshambulanceservice/
https://www.facebook.com/welshambulanceservice/
https://www.instagram.com/welshambulanceservice/?hl=en
https://www.instagram.com/welshambulanceservice/?hl=en


Melyn 1 

Welsh Ambulance Services NHS Trust

00:00:00

01:12:00

02:24:00

03:36:00

04:48:00

06:00:00

07:12:00

08:24:00

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21

Amber 1 Median, 65th and 95th Percentile

Amber 1 Median Amber 1 65th percentile Amber 1 95th percentile

T
udalen y pecyn 152

https://twitter.com/WelshAmbulance
https://twitter.com/WelshAmbulance
https://www.facebook.com/welshambulanceservice/
https://www.facebook.com/welshambulanceservice/
https://www.instagram.com/welshambulanceservice/?hl=en
https://www.instagram.com/welshambulanceservice/?hl=en


Canolrif, 65ed canradd a 95ed canradd Melyn

Welsh Ambulance Services NHS Trust

00:00:00

00:30:00

01:00:00

01:30:00

02:00:00

02:30:00

03:00:00

03:30:00

04:00:00

04:30:00

05:00:00

05:30:00

06:00:00

06:30:00

07:00:00

07:30:00

08:00:00

08:30:00

08:59:59

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21

Amber Median, 65th & 95th Percentile 

AMBER Median Amber 65th Amber Calls - 95th percentile response time

T
udalen y pecyn 153

https://twitter.com/WelshAmbulance
https://twitter.com/WelshAmbulance
https://www.facebook.com/welshambulanceservice/
https://www.facebook.com/welshambulanceservice/
https://www.instagram.com/welshambulanceservice/?hl=en
https://www.instagram.com/welshambulanceservice/?hl=en


Galwadau’n galw am ymateb Melyn

Welsh Ambulance Services NHS Trust

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21

Total Verified AMBER Demand 

T
udalen y pecyn 154

https://twitter.com/WelshAmbulance
https://twitter.com/WelshAmbulance
https://www.facebook.com/welshambulanceservice/
https://www.facebook.com/welshambulanceservice/
https://www.instagram.com/welshambulanceservice/?hl=en
https://www.instagram.com/welshambulanceservice/?hl=en

	Agenda
	2 Rhyddhau cleifion o ysbytai ac effaith hynny ar y llif cleifion drwy ysbytai: sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda chyrff y GIG
	Papur 1 - Coleg Nyrsio Brenhinol Cymru (Saesneg yn unig)
	Papur 2 - Coleg Brenhinol Pediatreg ac Iechyd Plant (Saesneg yn unig)
	Papur 3 - Cymdeithas Geriatrig Prydain (Saesneg yn unig)

	3 Rhyddhau cleifion o ysbytai ac effaith hynny ar y llif cleifion drwy ysbytai: sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda gweithwyr proffesiynol perthynol i iechyd
	Papur 5 - Cymdeithas Siartredig Ffisiotherapi (Saesneg yn unig)
	Papur 6 - Coleg Brenhinol y Therapyddion Iaith a Lleferydd (Saesneg yn unig)

	4.1 Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deisebau at y Cadeirydd ynghylch P-05-1078 Cynyddu cyllid ar gyfer gwasanaethau iechyd meddwl a gwella amseroedd aros i bobl sydd angen help mewn argyfwng. Mae angen newid!
	4.2 Ymateb gan y Cadeirydd at Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deisebau ynghylch P-05-1078 Cynyddu cyllid ar gyfer gwasanaethau iechyd meddwl a gwella amseroedd aros i bobl sydd angen help mewn argyfwng. Mae angen newid!
	6 Cyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2022-23: trafod yr adroddiad drafft
	7 Adolygiad y Pwyllgor Busnes o amserlen a chylchoedd gorchwyl y pwyllgorau: ystyried y llythyr drafft
	8 Ymchwiliad i ryddhau cleifion o ysbytai ac effaith hynny ar y llif cleifion drwy ysbytai: sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda gweithwyr proffesiynol perthynol i iechyd
	Papur 9 – Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Cwm Taf Morgannwg (Saesneg yn unig)
	Papur 10 – Bwrdd Iechyd Addysgu Powys (Saesneg yn unig)
	Papur 11- Ymddiriedolaeth GIG Gwasanaethau Ambiwlans Cymru
	WHSCCEvidenceV2Jan22FINALCymraeg.pdf
	W SeneddInquiryDataPackJan22





